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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

efits other than pensions, adopted in 1991.

OPERATING REVENUES ($ in millions)

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 1991 1990 % Change
(IBErating TOVERUEE .. s va/s ik wihire G S s i $1,380,261  $1,438,640 -4%
Income fromm Operations . - vy T e e b $ 192,866 $ 281,768 -32%
Net income '
Before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle in 1991%* .. ... ... ... $ 118,721 $ 174,576 -32%
After cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle in 1991% .. ... ... ... $ 70824 $ 174,576 -59%
Earnings per share
Before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle in 1991% . .. ... ... .. $ 10.00 $ 14.45 -31%
After cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle in 1991%* . ... .. ... .. $ 596 § 14.45 —59%
Dividends per shavel it saovin Siimviis e $ 420 § 4.00 +5%
Shareholders’ equity per share ................ $ 78:12.: % . 7631 +2%
Average number of shares outstanding . ......... 11,876 12,081 —2%

*Represents the cumulative effect on years prior to 1991 of the change in method of accounting for postretirement ben-

1991

1,380

1990
1989

1,439

1988

1,444

1987

1,368

OPERATING INcoME ($ in millions)

1,315

1991 193

1990

282

1989

233
257

1987

NET INcoME (§ in millions)

1991 71

1990 175

1989

198
269

1988

187

1987

EARNINGS PER SHARE

1991 $5.96
1990

$14.45
$15.50

1989

1988
1987

RETURN ON AVERAGE SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1991 7.7%

1990 18.9%

1989 21.9%
1988

$20.91
$14.52

36.3%

1987

35.5%




To OUR SHAREHOLDERS

1 marked the transition to a new management team at
199 The Washington Post Company. Donald Graham
became president and chief executive officer, succeeding Katharine Graham, who had
been chief executive officer since May 1973. She remains chairman of the Board of
Directors. Alan Spoon became executive vice president and chief operating officer, suc-
ceeding Richard Simmons, who retired after ten years of exceptional leadership.

During Dick’s tenure, earnings per share grew at an annual compounded
rate of 22.5 percent. Return on equity averaged 26 percent. The company acquired its
cable division, Stanley H. Kaplan Educational Center and Legi-Slate, and successfully
participated in the creation of the cellular telephone industry. Beyond these tangible
accomplishments, Dick set a high standard of professional management for the company
and prepared many executives for increasingly responsible assignments. Dick foresaw
the harsher realities that would confront media companies in the 1990’s. In response, he
worked assiduously to contain costs and honed the company’s competitive edge. Dick
remains a director of the company and president of the International Herald Tribune.

THE same PRINcIPLEs our predecessors embraced with such success
will guide the new management team. Specifically, we will continue to center our efforts
on the quality of our publications, programs and services, supported by an unwavering
commitment to high standards in the marketplace and within our organization.

We will continue to manage the company for the benefit of shareholders,
especially long-term shareholders whose perspective extends well beyond quarterly or
even yearly results. We will not measure our success by the size of our revenues or the
number of companies we control.

We will continue to manage costs rigorously. By keeping expenses in line
year in and year out, we hope to maximize profits while avoiding the kind of disruptive
downsizing that many companies have had to endure.

We will continue to be disciplined about the uses we make of our cash. We
will pursue acquisition opportunities that meet our admittedly high investment criteria,
as well as seek out new communications technologies that offer interesting growth poten-
tial. With $280 million in cash and marketable securities, we have ample resources to
exploit the opportunities we find. In addition, stock repurchases have always been, and
will continue to be, an important part of our investment strategy. In 1991 the company
repurchased 42,900 shares for $7.4 million.

We will continue to evaluate and reward managers on the basis of meaningful
achievements that benefit shareholders, including the company’s performance compared

to its competitors and other criteria such as return on equity.




We believe these principles will continue to produce good results for the
company and its shareholders over the long term.

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL REsULTs were disappointing — in fact,
1991 was a terrible year. The company’s net income declined 59 percent to $71 million
(85.96 per share), from $175 million ($14.45 per share) in 1990. Operating income fell
32 percent to $193 million, from $282 million the year before. Revenue dropped 4 per-
cent to $1,380 million, from $1,439 million in 1990.

The newspaper division, broadcast division, Newsweek and the company’s
“other businesses” segment all recorded lower profits. Affiliate results declined, as
newsprint manufacturers experienced continued soft demand. A number of one-time
items also affected the year’s results. In particular, the company incurred a one-time,
after-tax charge of $48 million ($4.04 per share) resulting from the adoption of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions.” Excluding this one-time charge, the company’s net
income for 1991 would have decreased 32 percent to $119 million ($10.00 per share).

LOWER SPENDING FOR ADVERTISING had an adverse impact on The
Washington Post, Post-Newsweek Stations and Newsweek. The recession took its toll on
employment, retail sales, housing and other key economic segments. Changing dynam-
ics in the advertising industry also affected results. Advertisers continued shifting more
dollars from traditional advertising to promotion. Marketers were firmly committed to
exploring the use of targeted media to reach narrowly defined market segments. In addi-
tion, hard-pressed advertisers and agencies focused on cost as the single most important
criterion in media selection at the expense of reasoned use of tailored, quality media.

As a result, total advertising revenue in 1991 fell 10 percent to $852 million,
from a less than robust $944 million the previous year. Recruitment and real estate
advertising were especially hard hit at The Post. Local advertising revenue declined 7
percent at Post-Newsweek Stations, while national spot advertising decreased 10 per-
cent. Newsweek, too, experienced a substantial downturn in advertising revenue.

Nevertheless, The Washington Post Company’s franchises are strong, and the
company is responding aggressively to the changed environment.

CosT coNTRoOL remains a top priority. Total operating expenses increased
3 percent last year and have grown at an annual rate of only 4 percent over the past
five years, despite the cost of serving higher numbers of subscribers to our publications

and cable services.




Declining newsprint expense, of course, has helped. Because of price reduc-
tions and lower volume resulting from less advertising, newsprint expense fell 10 per-
cent last year.

The company also worked hard to keep the number of employees low.
Through attrition, voluntary retirement packages, buyouts and strict control of vacan-
cies, the number of full-time employees declined 4 percent last year to 5,950. The com-
pany has not had fewer than 6,000 employees since 1984.

We will continue to focus on cost control — and we recognize we can do more
in this area — because a low cost base gives us the leverage to realize substantial profit
growth when economic conditions improve.

AT THE SAME TIME, We are committed to improving our publications,
programming and other services. This commitment reflects our responsibilities to read-
ers, viewers and the communities we serve. It also reflects the fact that, ultimately, high
quality is most effective in attracting the distinctive, desirable audiences advertisers
seek.

The company strengthened its franchises in 1991 through better circulation
management and, most important, by enhancing editorial quality. We worked especially
hard to provide first-rate coverage of the country’s economic troubles, the disintegration
of the Soviet Union and the Persian Gulf War, a crisis that generated exceptional public
interest. As a result, both daily and Sunday circulation rose last year at The Washington
Post, a significant accomplishment in a period when circulation at many major-market
newspapers declined. Newsweek’s U.S. circulation averaged 3.3 million, a 3 percent
increase over 1990 and a substantial bonus over Newsweek’s rate base of 3.1 million.
Readership gains and resulting efficiencies for advertisers continued to exhibit excep-
tional strength.

Circulation gains contributed to a 5 percent increase in the company’s circu-
lation revenue, which rose to $266 million in 1991. Equally important, producing publi-
cations of consistently high quality gives us several long-term advantages. This
commitment helps us know how and why audiences use our products. It assures adver-
tisers of audience involvement in our publications, a key requirement for advertising
effectiveness. It attracts desirable demographic groups. And it enables us to sell adver-
tising on a basis other than price. We hope this will allow us to derive maximum finan-
cial benefit from our editorial franchises in years to come.

Despite increased competition, Post-Newsweek television stations main-

tained their dominance in news, with comparable marketplace advantages. Our local




F YOU’RE LOOKING FOR OBJECTIVITY, PLEASE TURN THE PAGE.
l MY MOTHER, KATHARINE GRAHAM, STEPPED DOWN LAST MAY AS THE
COMPANY’S CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER. SHE HAD HELD THE TITLE OF CEO SINCE
1973, BUT HAD RUN THE COMPANY (WITH THE GREAT HELP OF FRITZ BEEBE IN THE
EARLY YEARS) SINCE 1963. SHE REMAINS A VERY ACTIVE CHAIRMAN AND IS NOT IN
ANY SENSE RETIRING. NONETHELESS, IT SEEMS A GOOD TIME TO TALK ABOUT HER. -
HER REACTION WHEN SHE FIRST TOOK OVER THE JOB IS EASILY SUMMA-
RIZED: WHAT IN THE WORLD, SHE ASKED HERSELF, AM | DOING HERE. THE BUSI-
NESS WORLD SHOOK ITS COLLECTIVE HEAD. NO OTHER WOMAN WAS RUNNING A
LARGE COMPANY IN THE UNITED STATES IN THE EARLY 1960’S. IN FORTUNE’S LIST
OF CEO’Ss OF THE 1000 LARGEST INDUSTRIAL COMPANIES, KAY GRAHAM’S WAS THE
ONLY WOMAN’S NAME UNTIL LiZ CLAIBORNE JOINED IN THE LATE 1980’s.

CAN A WOMAN SUCCESSFULLY RUN A LARGE CORPORATION?

HERE’S THE RECORD: 1963 1990
REVENUE $ 86 MILLION $ 1,439 MILLION
NET INCOME $ 5 MILLION $ 175 MILLION

POST CIRCULATION
DAILY 423,000 802,000
SUNDAY 514,000 1,145,000
PULITZER PRIZES: 18

NEWSWEEK CIRCULATION WORLDWIDE 1,762,000 4,052,000
NATIONAL MAGAZINE AWARDS: 5 i

ACQUISITIONS

1966 - ROBINSON TERMINAL 1978 - THE HERALD
WAREHOUSE 1983 -. LEGI-SLATE
1969 - WPLG/MIAMI 1984 - KAPLAN
1974 - TRENTON TIMES (OH, WELL) 1986 - CABLE
1974 - WFSB/HARTFORD
STOCK
1971 - INITIAL PRICE $6.50 (AFTER ADJUSTING FOR SPLITS)

EPS ANNUAL COMPOUND GROWTH RATE, 1963-1990: 17.1%
AVERAGE RETURN ON EQUITY, 1963-1990: 20.4%

ACTUALLY, THE NUMBERS ARE THE LESS IMPRESSIVE PART OF THE STORY.

4 IN 1971 SHE TOOK THE COMPANY PUBLIC. THE DAY BEFORE THE PUB-

LIC OFFERING, BRADLEE ASKED HER TO PRINT THE PENTAGON PAPERS STORY. THE
JUSTICE DEPARTMENT SENT HER A PRE-PUBLICATION MESSAGE THREATENING TO
PROSECUTE THE COMPANY, WHICH COULD HAVE RESULTED IN THE FORFEITURE OF
ITS BROADCAST LICENSES IF CONVICTED. AGAINST THE ADVICE OF HER LAWYERS
AND BUSINESS ADVISORS, SHE MADE THE DECISION TO PUBLISH THE STORY.

¢ IN 1972-73 SHE BACKED BRADLEE’S NEWSROOM IN PUBLISHING THE
WATERGATE STORIES, AGAIN UNDER FIERCE AND PERSONAL THREATS FROM TOP GOV-

ERNMENT OFFICIALS.




¢ PERHAPS HARDEST OF ALL, IN 1973-75 SHE ENDURED A SERIES OF
SHOWDOWNS WITH POST LABOR UNIONS, MAKING THE DECISION TO PUBLISH THE
PAPER DURING A VIOLENT STRIKE BY ITS PRESSMEN. IT WAS A DIFFICULT DECISION
AND, IN RETROSPECT, THE RIGHT ONE.

¢ WHEN WARREN BUFFETT BOUGHT INTO THE COMPANY IN THE EARLY
1970’s, SHE WAS WISE ENOUGH TO ASK HIS ADVICE AND PUT HIM ON THE COMPANY’S
BOARD. THERE WERE MANY PLEASANT CONSEQUENCES FOR SHAREHOLDERS. ON
WARREN’S ADVICE, THE COMPANY WAS PERHAPS THE FIRST IN OUR INDUSTRY TO
REPURCHASE SHARES IN LARGE QUANTITIES. BETWEEN 1975 AND TODAY, THE COM-
PANY HAS BOUGHT IN 43% OF ITS SHARES AT AN AVERAGE PRICE OF $60 PER SHARE.

¢ THROUGHOUT THE ’70’S AND ’'80’S SHE INSISTED ON QUALITY AS WELL
AS GOOD BUSINESS RESULTS. NEWSWEEK GREW STEADILY IN RESPECT AND NATIONAL
PROMINENCE. JIM SNYDER, THE BEN BRADLEE OF BROADCAST NEWS, HELPED JOEL
CHASEMAN AND BILL RYAN PUT TOGETHER NEWS TEAMS THAT WERE ALMOST ALWAYS
FIRST IN THEIR MARKETS.

4 IN 1981 SHE MADE DICK SIMMONS PRESIDENT AND TOGETHER THEY PUT
TOGETHER A STRONG AND STABLE MANAGEMENT TEAM THAT COMPILED A SUPERIOR
RECORD.

¢ IN 1986 SHE MADE HER LARGEST ACQUISITION, BUYING WHAT IS NOW
POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE FROM CAPITAL CITIES.

¢ THROUGHOUT THE 1980’S, SHE DID NOT MAKE MANY EXPENSIVE ACQUI-
SITIONS PRESSED ON HER BY INVESTMENT BANKERS AND OTHERS MUCH CELEBRATED
AT THE TIME. BECAUSE OF THAT, THE COMPANY IS ESSENTIALLY DEBT-FREE TODAY.

THROUGH IT ALL, KAY REMAINED UNIQUELY SELF-DOUBTING. AT A
CHRISTMAS LUNCH, ONE OF HER GUESTS ASKED EVERYONE AROUND THE TABLE
WHAT THEY WISHED THEY HAD DONE EARLIER IN LIFE. MOST SAID THEY WISHED
THEY’D BEEN CENTER FIELDERS OR MOVIE STARS. KAY SAID SHE WISHED SHE’D
GONE TO HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL.

IN A VERY EARLY AND VERY BRIEF PRE-FEMINIST PHASE, SHE ONCE
ACTUALLY GAVE AN INTERVIEW IN WHICH SHE SAID, “ANY MAN COULD DO THIS JOB
BETTER THAN ME.”

TWENTY-EIGHT YEARS LATER IT SEEMS FAIR TO SAY: NO ONE COULD

HAVE DONE IT BETTER.

DON GRAHAM




early and late news programs are number one at all four stations, with the single excep-
tion of early news in Detroit, rated second.

THE cOMPANY HAs REsPoNDED to the changing needs of advertisers.
Last year we increased targeted marketing options, including expanded zoned classified
at The Post, and selective binding and demographic editions at Newsweek. To address
advertisers’ need for flexibility in using our products, we introduced newly structured
rate cards. We also intensified efforts to respond quickly to special opportunities. For
example, shortly after the conclusion of the Persian Gulf War, Newsweek published a
special newsstand issue that generated significant circulation and advertising revenues.
Accordingly, we are formalizing our commitment, and improving our ability, to seize
moments of opportunity in serving reader, viewer and advertiser needs.

BUSINESSES NOT DEPENDENT oN ADVERTISING had mixed results
in 1991. Post-Newsweek Cable enjoyed another year of solid growth. The number of
basic subscribers rose to over 451,000, compared to 436,000 last year, and 360,000
when we acquired the cable division in 1986. Cable revenue, cash flow and operating
income all increased. Significantly, in 1991 domestic cable capital spending decreased
26 percent to $18 million, as line extensions and construction of new franchises neared
completion. In the future, domestic capital spending can be held near maintenance
levels.

While the overall rate of basic subscriber growth is slowing due to the build-
out of franchises and maximum penetration, prospects for further growth in domestic
cable operations remain good. We anticipate continued expansion of basic subscribers,
pay-per-view revenue and cable advertising. In addition, Post-Newsweek Cable is
experimenting with some new services, including digital radio music delivered by cable
to subscribers’ stereo systems.

Stanley H. Kaplan Educational Center posted somewhat lower profits last
year. Enrollments and revenue did increase, although the recession slowed their growth.
This highly successful business has attracted several new competitors, and Kaplan is
reinvesting now to ensure sustainable, superior returns over the long term.

Legi-Slate, our online information service covering Congress and federal reg-
ulations, had its best year ever. Operating income more than doubled that of 1990.

NEw BUsINEss venTures made encouraging progress last year. Our
cable operations in the United Kingdom continued to expand. The company has fran-
chises in Scotland encompassing a total of 283,000 homes. In 1991 we passed more
than 24,000 homes, with penetration rates ranging from 27 percent in existing systems

to 40 percent in new builds. These are among the highest penetration rates in the




United Kingdom — a reflection of Post-Newsweek Cable’s energetic marketing and com-
pelling prices for attractive entertainment. Construction costs are running below initial
estimates and industry experience.

Still, this business is not without risks. Until more cabling is completed
throughout the United Kingdom, the cost of programming will remain high and margin
pressure will be an issue. Recent investment commitments by large, reputable firms
suggest a favorable outlook. Recognizing the uncertain path to eventual cable maturity,
we are moving ahead carefully, while preserving our ability to enlarge our commitment if
conditions are right.

Another new venture, personal communications services (PCS), reflects our
faith in the growth prospects of a family of portable wireless telephones offering a variety
of features at a range of affordable rates. Common to all is a new digital technology that
offers a better quality connection and much greater system capacity than current analog
cellular technology. At the right low price, we believe PCS ultimately will reach tens of
millions of people in the United States and tenfold that many worldwide.

Our PCS partnership, American Personal Communications (APC), is a
responsible leader in the development of this new field. APC received licenses from the
Federal Communications Commission to build and operate experimental systems in
Washington and Baltimore. In November we launched test operations. With plans to
have 350 participants, our test is now the largest in the country.

Initial results are encouraging, and we remain excited about the future of this
business. However, future FCC rulings will determine how personal communications
services are developed, licensed and put into operation.

CHANGES IN EDITORIAL LEADERSHIP occurred at The Post, Newsweek
and Post-Newsweek Stations last year. Benjamin C. Bradlee retired as executive editor
of The Post, a position he had held since 1968. Quite simply, Ben redefined The Post
for a generation of Washingtonians. He reshaped the relationship between government
and the press. With the invention of the Style section, he started something now part of
almost every paper in the United States. Perhaps most important, Ben inspired a legion
of reporters and editors who continue his pursuit of first-rate journalism. Ben was elected
a director of the company in September and serves as vice president at large of The Post.
Leonard Downie, Jr., who had been managing editor of The Post since 1984, became
executive editor. Robert G. Kaiser was named managing editor.

At Newsweek, Richard M. Smith was appointed president. He remains edi-

tor-in-chief, a position he has held since 1984. We believe that combining editorial




and business responsibilities in an experienced executive like Rick will strengthen
Newsweek’s organizational structure. Maynard Parker, Newsweek’s editor since 1982,
took over responsibility for day-to-day editorial operations.

At Post-Newsweek Stations, Jim Snyder retired after 22 years as vice presi-
dent for news. Jim made a unique contribution to the development of modern local news
programming. He also was a trailblazer in promoting women and minorities to important
on-air assignments. Mark Effron, vice president-news/station manager at WFSB in
Hartford, has assumed the additional responsibility of vice president-news for Post-
Newsweek Stations.

Alan R. Finberg retired as vice president and secretary of the company after
20 years of distinguished service. He was succeeded by Diana M. Daniels, who remains
vice president and general counsel.

LooKING AHEAD, we anticipate another difficult year in 1992. Unless there
is a significant improvement in the nation’s economy, advertising will remain sluggish.
Nonetheless, our franchises are robust, our balance sheet is strong and the company’s long-

term prospects are good.

Katharine Graham

Chairman of the Board

Dy g o

Donald E. Graham
President and Chief Executive Officer

Alan G. Spoon
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

March 6, 1992




NEWSPAPER DIVISION

Newspaper division operating income in 1991 fell 38 percent to $89.5 mil-
lion, from $143.8 million in 1990. Division revenue totaled $642.7 million,

a decline of 7 percent from revenue of $691 million the previous year.

THE WAsSHINGTON PosT struggled against a soft local economy and a
consequent weak market for advertising. Advertising revenue fell 10 percent to $484
million, from $536 million in 1990. Advertising inches declined 13 percent to
3,570,600, from 4,125,400 the previous year.

Classified advertising was especially hard hit, as recruitment and real estate
volume plummeted in the first half of the year. Total classified advertising inches
declined 19 percent in 1991. Retail and general advertising inches each decreased 11
percent. Preprint volume, on the other hand, rose one-half percent.

The Post’s new warehouse in Springfield, Virginia, was completed and put
into operation. This facility has computerized systems that track preprinted advertising
material from arrival to insertion and enable The Post to handle increased volume with
greater efficiency. The warehouse was a $22.5 million investment that came in on time
and under budget.

THE POST CONTINUED To SERVE ITs READERsS wWeLL. Coverage
of the Persian Gulf War earned Pulitzer Prizes for Caryle Murphy, who courageously
remained in Kuwait and continued to file stories for 26 days after the Iraqi invasion in
August 1990, and Jim Hoagland, whose analysis and commentary provided unique
insight into the political and military events as they unfolded.

The breakup of the Soviet Union was a monumental development, well
reported by Post foreign correspondents Michael Dobbs and David Remnick.

At home, relentless violence in the streets of Washington generated ground-
breaking reporting efforts. Among them was a nine-part Metro series, “In the Line of
Fire,” that covered gun trafficking in the area and illustrated the spread of guns beyond
the drug culture.

CIRCULATION WAS sTRoNG. For the 12 months ended September 30,
1991, The Post’s average daily circulation rose 1.6 percent to 814,530. Sunday circula-
tion rose almost 1 percent to 1,154,138. Readers were especially interested in news
about the Gulf War. For example, the day the ground war began, The Post sold an extra
188,000 copies.

The Post’s primary-market penetration — 51 percent daily and 68 percent on

Sunday — remains the highest of any major-market newspaper.




SMALL VICTORIES

4 STEVE HILLS MANAGED THE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT UNIT, A NEW
GROUP OF AD SALES PEOPLE CALLING ON SMALLER ADVERTISERS. DESPITE THE
RECESSION AND RECORD BANKRUPTCIES, THE GROUP ACHIEVED A MEANINGFUL
INCREASE IN REVENUE AND SOLD 900 NEW ADVERTISERS INTO THE PAPER.

¢ SPRINGFIELD PRESSROOM CREW CHIEF JOHN REIKOWSKY’S CREW
BECAME THE FIRST IN THE HISTORY OF THE POST TO AVERAGE OVER 22,000 PAPERS
PRINTED PER HOUR FOR AN ENTIRE YEAR.

¢ WITH DIANE PRATHER’S SUBURBAN AND COUNTRY DEPARTMENT SHOW-
ING THE LARGEST DAILY/SUNDAY GAINS, POST CIRCULATION INCREASED DAILY AND
SUNDAY IN BOTH ABC REPORTING PERIODS IN 1991. IT WAS THE PAPER’S 28TH
DAILY CIRCULATION GAIN IN THE LAST 30 YEARS. SUNDAY CIRCULATION HAS BEEN
UP 30 YEARS IN A ROW.

4 ADVERTISING OPERATIONS MANAGER RALEIGH SCHEIN AND PRE-PRESS
MANAGER MARTY BLACK HELPED CREATE A UNIQUE DEPARTMENT, MERGING PEOPLE
AND WORK FROM THE COMPOSING ROOM AND ADVERTISING DEPARTMENTS.

¢ CARYLE MURPHY’S PULITZER PRIZE MEANS THE FOREIGN STAFF, LED
BY ASSISTANT MANAGING EDITOR MICHAEL GETLER, NOW INCLUDES THREE
PULITZER-WINNING REPORTERS. LONDON CORRESPONDENT GLENN FRANKEL AND
NEW DELHI CORRESPONDENT STEVE COLL WERE EARLIER WINNERS. ASSOCIATE
EDITOR JIM HOAGLAND HAS WON TWO PULITZERS, AS REPORTER AND COLUMNIST.

¢ WHEN U.S. REPORTERS ENTERED KUWAIT CITY DURING OPERATION
DESERT STORM, THERE WAS NO ELECTRICITY OR TELEPHONE SYSTEM. BUT POST
REPORTERS WERE ABLE TO FILE THEIR STORIES THANKS TO RALPH TERKOWITZ, VICE
PRESIDENT/DATA PROCESSING, WHO HAD ACQUIRED A SATELLITE-LINKED MOBILE
PHONE FOR THEM.

4 UNDER SUPERINTENDENT ALVIN NESMITH, THE POST’'S NORTHWEST PRESS-
ROOM SET ALL-TIME PRODUCTIVITY RECORDS. ALTHOUGH THE NORTHWEST PRESSES ARE 20
TO 40 YEARS OLD, PRODUCTIVITY HAS INCREASED BY 20 PERCENT IN THE LAST TWO YEARS.

¢ SEVENTY-FIVE WASHINGTON-AREA SCHOOLS ENTHUSIASTICALLY SUB-
SCRIBED TO “INSIDE THE WASHINGTON POST,” THE NEWSPAPER-IN-EDUCATION PRO-
GRAM MANAGED BY KATE HUMPHRIES AND DESIGNED WITH THE HELP OF VICE
PRESIDENT/COMMUNICATIONS VINCENT REED, A FORMER WASHINGTON, D.C.,

SCHOOL SUPERINTENDENT.




¢ REPORTER PIERRE THOMAS UNCOVERED A LOOPHOLE IN MARYLAND
LAW THAT PERMITTED ALMOST 300 GUN SALES TO CONVICTED CRIMINALS, A POLICY
THAT VIOLATED FEDERAL LAW. SOON AFTER THOMAS’ ARTICLE APPEARED,
MARYLAND’S ATTORNEY GENERAL ANNOUNCED THE STATE HAD REVERSED ITS POLICY.

4 BILL SNEAD WON THE WHITE HOUSE PRESS PHOTOGRAPHERS
ASSOCIATION’S “PHOTOGRAPHER OF THE YEAR” AWARD, AND THE POST’S PHOTO
STAFF WON THREE FIRST-PLACE AWARDS IN THE COMPETITION.

¢ AFTER THE FIRST TWO REDSKINS VICTORIES, SPORTS COLUMNIST TONY
KORNHEISER WROTE TONGUE-IN-CHEEK COLUMNS SUGGESTING THAT THE TEAM WAS
THE GREATEST OF ALL TIME AND READERS SHOULD “GET ON THE BANDWAGON.”
WHEN THE TEAM WON ITS FIRST 11 GAMES, KORNHEISER’S “BANDWAGON COLUMN”
DEVELOPED A CULT FOLLOWING, THEN A MASS FOLLOWING. PROMOTION DIRECTOR
CANDACE MEDD MADE UP A BANDWAGON BUMPER STICKER AND INSERTED IT IN A
FRIDAY PAPER; SALES WENT UP 35,000. KORNHEISER WAS DRIVEN TO THE SUPER
BOWL IN A LONG TRAILER PAINTED WITH BANDWAGON ARTWORK, FILING COLUMNS
ALONG THE WAY.

¢ NEWSSTAND ZONE MANAGER SANDRA BALLENTINE, WITH THE SUPPORT
OF DIVISION MANAGER MIKE DEWEY, TOOK THE LEAD IN CONVINCING A MAJOR
METROPOLITAN-AREA DRUG STORE CHAIN TO SELL THE POST INSIDE THEIR STORES.
THEY NOW AVERAGE OVER 2,000 SUNDAY POST SALES WEEKLY.

4 STEVE REED AND HIS TEAM OF HOME DELIVERY MANAGERS DRAMATI-
CALLY RAISED THE LEVEL OF SERVICE TO‘ THE POINT WHERE THE AVERAGE CUS-
TOMER WILL HAVE A PROBLEM WITH SUNDAY DELIVERY ONLY ONCE IN FIVE YEARS.

¢ REPORTER CARLOS SANCHEZ WROTE A STORY ABOUT A SEVEN-YEAR-OLD
CHILEAN BOY WHO NEEDED A $100,000 BONE MARROW TRANSPLANT. GIFTS RANGING
FROM $1 TO $30,000 POURED IN FROM THE WASHINGTON AREA AND FROM AS FAR
AWAY AS CALIFORNIA, LATIN AMERICA AND SPAIN. OVER $1 10,000 WAS RAISED.

¢ AT THE HERALD, A TEAM FROM ADVERTISING SALES, AD SERVICES, ART
AND PROMOTION STREAMLINED THE PROCESS OF SELLING AND PRODUCING CAMERA-
READY R.O.P. ADVERTISING. THE RESULT WAS DRAMATICALLY IMPROVED TURN-
AROUND TIME FOR PROOFS, FEWER ERRORS AND HIGHER QUALITY. THEIR SUCCESS
IS THE INSPIRATION FOR RESTRUCTURING THE ENTIRE AD PRODUCTION SYSTEM INTO
SIMILAR TEAMS. THE TEAM INCLUDED JIM GAY, TIM JARBOE, GAIL MOSSMAN, RICK
WAITES, KIRSTIN WAHT, GREG SHEFFIELD, LYNN JEFFERSON, DENNIS HANSCOM,

RICH JAROSIK AND CHUCK SOVERNS.




THE PosT's NEw MEpIA CeNTER made further progress. The “Post-
Haste” telephone lines, which provide stock quotes, sports scores and other information,
rang up 9.2 million information requests, versus 4.5 million in 1990.

THE NATIONAL WEEKLY EpiTioN also continued its growth. Circu-
lation averaged 90,000 copies during 1991, up from 85,000 the previous year, and well
above the rate base of 30,000 when the publication was launched in 1983.

THE WASHINGTON POST WRITERS GRouP introduced two new fea-
tures during 1991, Eleanor Randolph’s “Letter from Moscow” and The Washington Post
Magazine Crossword Puzzle. In February 1992 the Writers Group launched a new daily
and Sunday comic strip, “Non Sequitur,” by Wiley. It was acquired by 50 newspapers,
including papers in eight of the country’s top ten markets.

THE HERALD, the company-owned newspaper in Everett, Washington,
successfully completed its conversion from an afternoon to a morning paper. Although
daily circulation fell slightly, as expected, The Herald anticipates resumption of circula-

tion growth this year. The response from advertisers has been favorable.

NEWSPAPER DIVISION OPERATING REVENUES (§ in millions)

1990

643

727

1987

683

648

NEWSPAPER DIVISION OPERATING INCOME ($ in millions)

1991
1990

20
144

1989

1988

177
141

1987

THE WASHINGTON POST CIRCULATION (in thousands)

145

B Daily M Sunday

1991

1,154

1990

1,145

802

1989

1,138

793

1,122

789

1987

1,105

778




POST-NEWSWEEK STATIONS

Broadcast division operating income was $49.1 million in 1991, down 29 per-
cent from $68.9 million in 1990. Division revenue for the year fell 9 percent
to $163.5 million, from $179.4 million in 1990, which included record political adver-
tising revenue of $8 million.

Each Post-Newsweek station battled a recessionary economy in its local mar-
ket, as well as soft national advertising. A write down of “The Cosby Show,” which was
purchased for airing in Detroit in 1988, also contributed to the decrease in 1991 operat-
ing income.

PNS managers responded vigorously to the grim realities by developing
aggressive new marketing programs and by holding down costs. Total operating expenses
have grown only 2 percent, compounded annually, since 1987. Full-time staffing is
down 14 percent in the same period. Our stations continue to be selective in purchasing
programming and are able to secure very favorable prices because of the stations’ high
quality and ratings strength.

Despite intensified competition, Post-Newsweek stations maintained their
leadership in news and other locally produced programming — the cornerstone of
progress in the future.

WDIV/TV4-DETROIT experienced particular softness in local advertising,
reflecting the impact of the troubled U.S. automobile industry on Detroit’s economy. On
the bright side, WDIV continued to be the leader in the critical 11:00 p.m. news arena.
In addition, the station successfully negotiated a new three-year contract with the Detroit
Tigers, continuing a string of 20 consecutive years of Tigers baseball on WDIV.

In September the station embarked on a year-long news and public affairs
campaign that focuses on finding innovative solutions to critical concerns of Detroit-area
residents: youth crime, the homeless, the future of the city of Detroit, the crisis in the
auto industry. The campaign includes prime-time documentaries, late-night discussion
programs, special news reports, editorials and public service announcements.

WPLG/TVio-Miami completed its seventh year as the number one South
Florida television station. In the November 1991 Nielsen ratings, the station posted
audience increases in its 5:00, 5:30, 6:00 and 11:00 p.m. news programs.

The Miami-area economy remains troubled, with a 28 percent commercial
real estate vacancy rate and growing unemployment caused by the bankruptcies of major
businesses such as Eastern Airlines and Pan Am. However, mergers in the financial
industry and the entrance of new retailers into the market strengthened local advertis-
ing. “Countdown to Kickoff” completed its sixth year as one of the station’s most suc-

cessful extended marketing ventures, now syndicated in eight Florida markets.




SMALL VICTORIES

AT WDIV...

¢ HENRY MALDONADO, VICE PRESIDENT/PROGRAMMING AND PROMOTION,
WAS CO-EXECUTIVE PRODUCER (WITH WALTER PINCUS AT THE POST) OF “THE
SECRET FILES,” A WASHINGTON POST COMPANY-PRODUCED DOCUMENTARY NARRATED
BY BEN BRADLEE. IT REPRESENTS A UNIQUE COLLABORATION BETWEEN THE POST
NEWSPAPER, NEWSWEEK AND POST-NEWSWEEK STATIONS. AN AGREEMENT WITH
WETA, THE PUBLIC BROADCASTING STATION IN WASHINGTON, D.C., ENABLED
NATIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF THIS FIRST SPECIAL AND PAVED THE WAY FOR POSSIBLE
FUTURE DOCUMENTARIES.

4 MARCIA ETIENNE, DIRECTOR OF BUSINESS AFFAIRS, REORGANIZED HER
DEPARTMENT AND ASSUMED THE ADDITIONAL DUTIES OF PERSONNEL DIRECTOR. WITHOUT
ADDING STAFF, SHE UPGRADED THE PRODUCTIVITY OF THE EXPANDED OPERATION.

¢ INVESTIGATIVE REPORTER MIKE WENDLAND AND PHOTOGRAPHER PAUL
BRINKERHOFF RECEIVED A SPECIAL COMMUNITY AWARD FOR A SERIES OF UNDERCOVER
REPORTS ABOUT A DRUG-INFESTED SUBURBAN NEIGHBORHOOD. AS A RESULT OF THE
SERIES, A TASK FORCE OF GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS, POLICE, PRIVATE BUSINESSES AND

NEIGHBORHOOD CITIZENS BANDED TOGETHER TO CLEAN UP THE AREA.

AT WPLG...

¢ EXECUTIVE PRODUCER NANCI ROSS PRODUCED THE “TIME TO CARE
VOLUNTEERATHON,” DURING WHICH OVER 3.6 MILLION HOURS OF VOLUNTEER SER-
VICE WERE COMMITTED TO COMMUNITY AGENCIES.

¢ MANNY CAYCEDO, WHO WORKS LONG HOURS AS THE TRAFFIC AND OPERA-
TIONS DEPARTMENT’S SALES AND SERVICE COORDINATOR, VOLUNTEERED DURING HIS
SPARE TIME TO RUN THE STATION’S “TIME TO CARE” BOOTH AT COMMUNITY EVENTS.

¢ AARON KING FILLED IN FOR AWARD-WINNING VIDEOTAPE EDITOR LUCY
FLANAGAN, WHO WAS ON MATERNITY LEAVE DURING THE YEAR. DISPLAYING IMAGI-
NATION, CREATIVITY AND ENERGY, AARON CREATED THE EXCEPTIONAL GRAPHICS

AND ANIMATION VIEWERS EXPECT FROM WPLG.




AT WFSB...

4 DICK AHLES CHAIRS WFSB’S EDITORIAL BOARD AND WRITES THE STA-
TION’S DAILY EDITORIALS. IN 1991 HE PRODUCED 58 EDITORIALS ON CONNECTICUT’S
BUDGET AND TAX CRISIS. ALTHOUGH IT WAS OFTEN A LONELY VIGIL, DICK’S CLEAR
AND CONSISTENT PRESENTATION OF THE STATION’S VIEWS PLACED WFSB AT THE
CENTER OF CONNECTICUT’S MOST INTENSE PUBLIC DEBATE IN DECADES.

¢ MARK EFFRON, VICE PRESIDENT OF NEWS AND STATION MANAGER, NAV-
IGATED THE STATION THROUGH AN ENORMOUSLY CHALLENGING NEWS YEAR AS WELL
AS MAJOR FORMAT CHANGES. WHEN ONE OF WFSB’S NEWS ANCHORS JOINED THE
NBC NETWORK, EFFRON QUICKLY RECONFIGURED TWO OF THE STATION’S FOUR

NEWSCAST ANCHOR TEAMS.

AT WJXT...

¢ JACK PQTTER, LOCAL AD SALES MANAGER, LED HIS STAFF TO ITS
STRONGEST FINISH IN YEARS. THE BIGGEST SUCCESS WAS THE WJXT VALUE PACK,
A DIRECT MAIL COUPON BOOK THAT GENERATED HUNDREDS OF THOUSANDS OF DOL-
LARS IN REVENUE. DAWN RODRIGUEZ HUDSON, SALES PROMOTION COORDINATOR,
ORGANIZED THE VALUE PACK.

¢ STEVE FLANAGAN, POST-NEWSWEEK STATIONS’ VICE PRESIDENT OF
ENGINEERING, AND JIM BIGGERS, WJXT’S CHIEF ENGINEER, SUPERVISED THE STA-
TION'S MOVE INTO A NEW BROADCAST FACILITY DURING THE WEEK THE GULF WAR
BEGAN. RUNNING TWO FACILITIES AT ONCE, THEY MADE THE MOVE WITHOUT REQUIR-
ING THE STATION TO SIGN OFF THE AIR.

4 ANN PACE, VICE PRESIDENT AND STATION MANAGER, CAME UP WITH
THE IDEA OF RUNNING THE FIRST EPISODE OF “DALLAS” RIGHT BEFORE CBS BROAD-
CAST THE FINAL EPISODE. SHE AGGRESSIVELY NEGOTIATED A DEAL WITH THE SYNDI-
CATOR TO RUN THE ORIGINAL EPISODE AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE STATION.
THE SHOW GENERATED HIGH RATINGS.

¢ IN RESPONSE TO REMARKS ABOUT AFRICAN-AMERICANS MADE BY THE
CHIEF CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE, NEWS DIRECTOR NANCY SHAFRAN PULLED TOGETHER
A 90-MINUTE PRIME-TIME TOWN MEETING IN LESS THAN 48 HOURS. THAT PROGRAM
WAS CRUCIAL IN HELPING COMMUNITY LEADERS DIFFUSE RACIAL TENSIONS.

4 CHUCK COOPER, COURIER AND MAILROOM STAFFER, MADE A SPLASH AS
DINOFOUR, WJXT’S BIG GREEN FRIENDLY MASCOT. WEARING HIS DINOFOUR SUIT,
CHUCK WAS FEATURED IN MANY FAMILY-ORIENTED STATION PROMOTIONS AND

ADVERTISER-SPONSORED VIGNETTES THAT GENERATED REVENUE.




WPLG’s “Time to Care” community service effort continued to make a differ-
ence in the lives of needy citizens. One project brought together hundreds of South
Florida companies and volunteers to renovate an inner-city YMCA.

WFSB/TV3-HARTForD made the most of a very difficult year, maintain-
ing clear ratings superiority and leadership in news, a notable accomplishment in one of
the country’s most fragmented and competitive television markets.

New England’s worst recession in 60 years continued to take a heavy toll.
Advertising revenue declined for all media, including WFSB. One small Connecticut
television station went out of business, while another dropped its newscasts to offset rev-
enue losses. Fortunately, by the end of the year there were some signs of a stabilizing, if
not growing, economy.

WFSB battled the recessionary climate with stringent cost control and steps
to build revenue share. Exceptional viewer interest in the recession, the Gulf War and
Connecticut’s year-long legislative battle over tax reform increased the station’s already
large news audiences.

WJIXT/TV4-JAcksoNviLLE continued to dominate an increasingly
competitive market. The station delivered an average daily audience share of 32 per-
cent, sign-on to sign-off, equal to the shares of the other two network affiliates combined,
and the third-highest share among all stations in the top 100 U.S. markets.

WIXT increased its early news programming from one-half hour to a full 90
minutes, a successful move in terms of both ratings and revenue.

WIXT has created several innovative marketing strategies to combat a local
economy that has been soft, although more resilient than many. One marketing tech-
nique pioneered by WJXT was a coupon book delivered by direct mail. Combined with
an on-air advertising schedule, this endeavor attracted advertisers who had never before

appeared on television and generated substantial revenue for the station.

POST-NEWSWEEK STATIONS OPERATING REVENUES ($ in millions)

1991 163
1990 179
1989 183
1988 180
1987 171

POST-NEWSWEEK STATIONS OPERATING INcOME ($ in millions)

1991 49

1990 69
1989 72
1988 64

1987 70




POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE

C able division operating income totaled $35 million in 1991, a 20 percent
increase over $29.2 million in 1990. Domestic cable cash flow rose 12 per-
cent to $75.3 million, from $67.4 million the previous year. Revenue for 1991 was
$159.5 million, an increase of 10 percent over revenue of $145.5 million in 1990.
However, basic and tier programming costs continued to rise rapidly, increasing nearly
20 percent from the 1990 figure.

BAasic suBscriBERs rose to 451,179 at the end of the year, a gain of
15,283 from the beginning of 1991, and representing 68.4 percent of homes passed.
The 1991 subscriber gain follows increases of 19,564 in 1990 and 14,634 in 1989.
Systems with subscriber increases of more than 1,000 included Fargo, North Dakota;
Highland Park, Illinois; and Modesto and Santa Rosa, California.

Post-Newsweek Cable continued to acquire subscribers in the Highland Park
area by franchising small portions of unincorporated Cook and Lake Counties and
Riverwoods, which will be part of the Highland Park system.

A major system rebuild was completed in Lufkin, Texas, and system
upgrades were completed in Clifton, Winslow and Holbrook, Arizona.

ADVERTISING sALEs rose 9 percent to $6 million. Twenty Post-Newsweek
cable systems now sell both spot and classified advertising, while 11 sell spot only and six
sell classified only.

Pavy-PER-vIEW REVENUE jumped by over 100 percent in 1991, reach-
ing $3.1 million. Post-Newsweek Cable is able to offer pay-per-view to the more than 80
percent of its subscribers whose systems have the needed addressable capability.
Addressability was added in an additional six systems in 1991. New impulse ordering
technology, which enables the customer to order an event by remote control through the
converter, was introduced in two systems. The Joplin, Missouri, system introduced a
simplified Automatic Number Identification ordering process that resulted in a tripling

of the movie buy rate.




SMALL VICTORIES

¢ AS PART OF AN INDUSTRY-WIDE EFFORT CALLED “CABLE IN THE
CLASSROOM,” POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE PROVIDES FREE INSTALLATION, MONTHLY
SERVICE AND PROGRAMMING GUIDES TO SCHOOLS WITHIN ITS SYSTEMS. UNDER THE
“CABLE IN THE CLASSROOM” UMBRELLA, KEN BERNS, MODESTO SYSTEM MANAGER,
HOSTED A DINNER FOR OVER 100 AREA TEACHERS AND ADMINISTRATORS. CABLE
PROGRAMMING REPRESENTATIVES MADE PRESENTATIONS ABOUT THEIR EDUCATIONAL
PROGRAMMING, WHICH IS PROVIDED FREE OF CHARGE TO THE SCHOOLS. ALL PAR-
TICIPANTS CAME AWAY WITH A BETTER UNDERSTANDING OF THE CABLE INDUSTRY’S
CONTRIBUTION TO EDUCATION.

¢ JAN BEESON, FORMER DIRECTOR OF ADVERTISING SALES IN PONCA
CITY, OKLAHOMA, LED THE CITY’S 1991 UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN. SHE RAISED
$772,000. CONOCO, A MAJOR EMPLOYER IN PONCA CITY, MATCHED EVERY DOLLAR
OVER THE OLD RECORD OF $690,000. LATE IN 1991 JAN MOVED TO POST-
NEWSWEEK CABLE’S HIGHLAND PARK, ILLINOIS, SYSTEM.

¢ RON VAN BUREN, GENERAL MANAGER OF THE KIRKSVILLE, MISSOURI,
SYSTEM, DONATED CAMERAS AND EQUIPMENT TO MEDIA CLASSES AT THE LOCAL PUB-
LIC SCHOOLS. STUDENTS PRODUCE PROGRAMS SHOWING SCHOOL SPORTS AND
OTHER EVENTS FOR CABLE CHANNEL 2, WHICH IS DEDICATED EXCLUSIVELY TO
SCHOOL DISTRICT USE.

¢ THE SANTA ROSA SCHOOL SYSTEM FACED A SHORTFALL OF FUNDS TO
SUPPORT ITS SPORTS PROGRAMS. JOHN GOSCH, SANTA ROSA SYSTEM MANAGER,
HOSTED A TWO-NIGHT TELETHON THAT RAISED $50,000 TO MAINTAIN THE PRO-
GRAMS. IT WAS A GRASSROOTS EFFORT, WITH MANY COMMUNITY GROUPS VOLUN-
TEERING TO STAFF THE TELEPHONES DURING THE SHOW.

¢ IN ROSWELL, NEW MEXICO, SYSTEM MANAGER DENNIS EDWARDS
COORDINATED POST-NEWSWEEK’S PARTICIPATION IN THE TOYS FOR TOTS HOLIDAY
PROGRAM. THE SYSTEM WAIVED INSTALLATION FEES FOR CUSTOMERS WHO
BROUGHT IN A NEW TOY OF $10 OR MORE IN VALUE.

¢ DURING THE HOLIDAY SEASON, JONI YOUNG AND JOYCE SCHMITZ
HELPED THE KIRKSVILLE SYSTEM COLLECT AND DELIVER ALMOST 100 TOYS TO THE

KIRKSVILLE SALVATION ARMY.




¢ TRENTON, MISSOURI, SYSTEM MANAGER CHARLOTTE MCCLURE COL-
LECTED CANS OF FOOD IN LIEU OF INSTALLATION FEES IN DECEMBER AND SENT THE
FOOD TO A LOCAL FOOD BANK.

¢ IN DYERSBURG, TENNESSEE, SYSTEM MANAGER DANNY WILLIAMSON
AND OFFICE MANAGER LINDA JACOBI SPENT TIME TUTORING AREA CHILDREN.
DANNY AND LINDA TUTOR DISADVANTAGED SIXTH GRADERS AT A NEARBY SCHOOL,
AND EVERY FRIDAY TWO EIGHTH GRADERS SPEND THE MORNING LEARNING ABOUT
THE OPERATION OF A CABLE SYSTEM.

¢ PRODUCTION DIRECTOR TODD RANDALL AND TRAFFIC DIRECTOR
ARLENE CRIBBS GAVE MANY VOLUNTEER HOURS PRODUCING THE ROSWELL SYS-
TEM’S ANNUAL AUGUST TELETHON TO RAISE MONEY FOR THE EASTERN NEW MEXICO
MEDICAL CENTER FOUNDATION. ALMOST $150,000 WAS RAISED DURING THE ONE-
DAY EVENT.

¢ POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE PERSONNEL PLAY ACTIVE ROLES IN STATE
AND REGIONAL TRADE ASSOCIATIONS THAT HELP SERVE THE INDUSTRY. TO HIGH-
LIGHT A FEW:

¢ RAY CLEMONS, MANAGER OF THE GULFPORT SYSTEM, IS PRESIDENT OF
THE MIsSsISSIPPI CABLE TELEVISION ASSOCIATION.

¢ JERALD STONE, MANAGER OF THE PONCA CITY SYSTEM, IS PRESIDENT
OF THE CABLE TELEVISION OPERATORS OF OKLAHOMA.

¢ JERALD STONE AND JIM PERRY, MANAGER OF THE JOPLIN, MISSOURI,
SYSTEM, SERVE TOGETHER ON THE BOARD OF THE MID-AMERICA CABLE ASSOCIA-
TION.

¢ MARY RUSKIN, VICE PRESIDENT OF REGULATORY AFFAIRS, IS THE

INCOMING PRESIDENT OF THE ARIZONA CABLE TELEVISION ASSOCIATION.




Major pay-per-view events for the year were the Foreman-Holyfield and
Tyson-Ruddock fights, which generated combined revenue of nearly $800,000.

Later this year, the Summer Olympics from Barcelona, Spain, will be avail-
able on pay-per-view to over three-quarters of Post-Newsweek Cable subscribers. The
complete Olympic package consists of three channels and 15 days of programming.

IN AN EFFORT to stem the decline in pay units experienced during the
past two years, Post-Newsweek Cable introduced a new service called Encore in several

systems. Encore is a relatively low-cost service featuring hit movies of the 1960’s, *70’s

and ’80’s.

POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE OPERATING REVENUES ($ in millions)

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987

160

145

129

POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE OPERATING INCOME ($ in millions)

1991
1990
1989
1988 20
1987 18

35

POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE DOMESTIC CASH FLow ($ in millions)

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987 43

75

67

51

POST-NEWSWEEK CABLE DOMESTIC BASIC SUBSCRIBERS (in thousands)

1991
1990
1989
1988
1987

451.2
435.9
416.3

401.7

385.2




NEWSWEEK

Newsweek’s operating income in 1991 decreased 66 percent to $9.1 million,
from $26.9 million in 1990. Revenue totaled $326.5 million in 1991, a

decline of 4 percent from $340.2 million the previous year. A soft market for advertising
throughout the magazine industry was the primary reason for the fall-off in Newsweek’s
results. The business and consumer services category and the computer and office
equipment category were especially hard hit. However, some categories showed
strength. Retail advertising revenue, for example, almost tripled. Increased postal costs
also contributed to the decline in operating income.

THE YEAR'S MAJOR INTERNATIONAL sTorIEs — the Persian Gulf
War and the breakup of the Soviet Union — provided defining moments for Newsweek.
Working under tremendous time and logistical pressures, the magazine provided exclu-
sive reporting and sharp analysis not available anywhere else, despite saturation televi-
sion and print coverage. Newsweek’s coverage of the invasion of Kuwait in August
1990, and of the subsequent months leading up to the war in January 1991, earned the
Overseas Press Club’s 1991 Ed Cunningham Memorial Award for Best Reporting from
Abroad. Newsweek’s maps and charts — including two centerfold pull-outs — were
innovative, highly praised and emulated. After the war, media critic Edwin Diamond of
New York Magazine concluded, “Newsweek won the battle of the weeklies thanks to
good timing... and excellent commentary.”

Readers were equally well served by Newsweek’s coverage of the dramatic
events in the Soviet Union. Devoting an entire issue to the Soviet coup, Newsweek pub-
lished “The Second Russian Revolution” in September. It included an exclusive report
that the Bush administration had ignored several CIA warnings of an impending coup.
In December Newsweek was the first U.S. publication to conduct an extensive interview
with Boris Yeltsin after he became President of Russia.

READERS REsPoNDEeD enthusiastically to Newsweek’s editorial vitality.
Average U.S. circulation rose to a record 3.3 million, giving advertisers a bonus circula-
tion of 200,000 over Newsweek’s rate base of 3.1 million. Subscription renewals were at
an all-time high. Readership reached 21.5 million, also a record, according to Simmons
Market Research Bureau. Newsweek had the highest percentage gain of all the 110-
plus magazines surveyed by Simmons in 1991. Perhaps most significant, Newsweek was
alone among the newsweeklies in retaining new readers after the Gulf War ended.
According to the fall 1991 MRI survey, Newsweek continued to gain audience share
while its competitors lost readers.
LAUNCHING A MAJOR EDITORIAL INITIATIVE, Newsweek will be

the first major magazine to use selective-binding technology to enable readers to cus-




SMALL VICTORIES

4 ON ASSIGNMENT TO COVER THE KURDISH UPRISING FOLLOWING THE
GULF WAR, BANGKOK BUREAU CHIEF RON MOREAU CAME UNDER HEAVY ARTILLERY
FIRE FROM IRAQI FORCES. HE THEN SLOGGED THROUGH RAIN AND COLD WITH
REFUGEES AS THEY FLED INTO THE MOUNTAINS. FINALLY, MOREAU CONVINCED THE
TURKISH MILITARY TO TAKE HIM BY HELICOPTER TO THE NEAREST TOWN, WHERE HE
PHONED IN HIS FIRST-PERSON COVER STORY ON THE KURDS’ PLIGHT, RIGHT ON
DEADLINE.

¢ THE ERUPTION OF MT. PINATUBO IN THE PHILIPPINES CAUSED MAJOR
DISRUPTIONS AT MANILA’S AIRPORT. NELSON LIM, REGIONAL CIRCULATION MANAGER,
BOARDED A 5:00 A.M. FLIGHT TO CEBU, A PROVINCIAL CAPITAL, AND PERSONALLY
CARRIED COPIES OF NEWSWEEK FOR DISTRIBUTION.

¢ A NEWSWEEK TEAM, COORDINATED BY LATIN AMERICA BUSINESS MAN-
AGER RICHARD HAUPTNER, WITH EXTENSIVE HELP FROM JOEL REISS OF U.S. MANU-
FACTURING, JOHN MAKAREWICZ AND JOHN MACKEY OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS, AND
MARY GREEN OF ATLANTIC FULFILLMENT, DEVELOPED A NEW LABELING AND PLASTIC
WRAPPING PROCEDURE THAT ACCELERATED DELIVERY IN LATIN AMERICA BY 24
HOURS AND WILL SAVE $50,000 ANNUALLY.

¢ JOE MCHUGH, ASSOCIATE SALES DIRECTOR IN DETROIT, SOLD AN AUTO
COMPANY AN EXCLUSIVE SECTION ON THE 75TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE NATIONAL
PARKS THAT THE COMPANY PLANS TO RUN AGAIN IN 1992.

¢ NANCY STADTMAN, HEAD RESEARCHER, NATION, TOOK ON ADDED
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES DURING THE GULF WAR, AT TIMES SEEING VIRTUALLY
THE ENTIRE MAGAZINE THROUGH THE EDITORIAL RESEARCH PROCESS. HER HARD
WORK, SPEED AND ACCURACY SHAVED HOURS OFF OF PREPARATION TIME AND
ENABLED NEWSWEEK TO GO ON SALE RIGHT ON SCHEDULE.

¢ GEOFF COWLEY’S COVER STORY ON HALCION WAS VALIDATED BY GOV-
ERNMENT AC‘TION: GREAT BRITAIN HAS PULLED THE DRUG OFF THE MARKET, AND
THE U.S. AND MANY EUROPEAN COUNTRIES ARE REEVALUATING HALCION’S STATUS.

¢ KAREN STARK, MANUFACTURING/DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS MANAGER,
UNDERTOOK A DIFFICULT TECHNICAL AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF NEWSWEEK
INTERNATIONAL. HER WORK ENABLED SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT ANGELO RIVELLO TO

NEGOTIATE CONTRACTS FOR ALL THREE INTERNATIONAL EDITIONS TO BE PRODUCED

IN FOUR COLORS AT A SIGNIFICANTLY LOWER COST THAN BLACK AND WHITE.




¢ BILL MURRAY, SAN FRANCISCO SALES DIRECTOR, AND BILL
YOUNGBERG, CHICAGO ASSOCIATE SALES DIRECTOR, LINKED A MAJOR CONSUMER
PRODUCTS COMPANY AND NEWSWEEK AS CO-SPONSORS OF AN ENVIRONMENTAL
CONTEST FOR SCHOOLS NATIONWIDE, AN INNOVATION THAT MADE THE COMPANY ONE
OF NEWSWEEK’S LARGEST ADVERTISERS.

4 THE CIRCULATION/NEWSSTAND DEPARTMENT DEVELOPED A TOP-NOTCH
STRATEGY TO SECURE OPTIMAL POSITIONING IN MAJOR RETAIL OUTLETS. THEY RUSH
COPIES OF NEWSWEEK TO MAJOR AIRPORT NEWSSTANDS ON SUNDAYS INSTEAD OF
MONDAYS. CUSTOMIZED FLOOR DISPLAYS THAT HIGHLIGHT EACH WEEK’S COVER
STORY ARE QUICKLY CREATED AND PLACED. THESE STRATEGIES PRODUCED GROWTH
IN CIRCULATION, PARTICULARLY DURING THE GULF WAR.

¢ ATLANTIC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR DAVID GOW, WITH THE
HELP OF HERIBERT STRIEWE, REGIONAL DIRECTOR FOR GERMANY AND EASTERN
EUROPE, SOLD A SPECIAL ADVERTISING SECTION THAT RAN IN THE U.S. AND EUROPE
TO ATTRACT WESTERN INVESTMENT IN POLAND. AS A RESULT, OTHER FORMER
EASTERN BLOC COUNTRIES ARE CONSIDERING SIMILAR ADS.

4 HIDEKI WATANABE, TOKYO AD SALES REPRESENTATIVE, APPROACHED A
JAPANESE AUTO MAKER WITH THE IDEA OF RUNNING THE RESULTS OF MAJOR F-1
CAR RACES AROUND THE WORLD. THE COMPANY BOUGHT SEVEN SPREADS IN
EUROPE IN 1991 AND PLANS TO REPEAT THE PROGRAM IN 1992,

¢ LEADING THE SIX-PERSON NEW YORK COPY DESK, TITA GILLESPIE SET
A HIGH STANDARD FOR EXCELLENCE, WORKING 12-HOUR DAYS, FROM 4:00 P.M. TO
4:00 A.M. ON FRIDAYS AND SATURDAYS. DURING THE GULF WAR, WHEN MOST OF
THE MAGAZINE WAS WRITTEN RIGHT ON DEADLINE, TITA’S SKILLS WERE VITAL.

¢ DURING THE GULF WAR, ASSOCIATE ART EDITOR ALEX HA’S PHOTO
LAYOUTS ILLUSTRATED NEWSWEEK’S EXCELLENCE IN PHOTO JOURNALISM. HE WAS

PART OF THE TEAM THAT CREATED THE “WEAPONS OF WAR” PULL-OUT CHART.




tomize their copies of the magazine. Beginning in April 1992, readers can elect to have
one of four Newsweek “Focus” editorial sections included in their magazine once a
month. The eight-page sections are science and technology, personal finance, interna-
tional news and excerpts from newly published books. Subscribers will pay an additional
charge for the “Focus” sections. '

NEWSWEEK'S cROoss-MEDIA ALLIANcEs with Meredith Corporation
and Times Mirror Magazines attracted new advertisers in 1991. Using the 21 magazines
owned by the three companies, advertisers can reach a total audience of 79 million read-
ers through a single buy. These carefully crafted packages have generated more than
510 pages of advertising for the three publishers from ten major advertisers.

NEWSWEEK INTERNATIONAL posted record circulation and advertising
revenue in 1991. Strong circulation growth enabled Newsweek International to increase
rate bases in all three of its principal editions for 1992. The Atlantic edition increased
its base by 4.7 percent to 335,000; Asia increased by 2.3 percent to 220,000; and Latin
America increased by 8.3 percent to 65,000.

Newsweek’s Japanese-language edition, Nihon Ban, increased its 1992 rate
base by 18.5 percent, rising from 135,000 to 160,000.

In October 1991 Newsweek launched a Korean-language edition, Hankuk
Pan, with a circulation of 70,000. The new magazine is published with Joong-ang Ilbo, a
subsidiary of the Samsung Group.

NEWSWEEK OPERATING REVENUES ($ in millions)

1991 326
1990 340
1989 334
1988 328
1987 322

NEWSWEEK PRO FORMA OPERATING INcoME ($ in millions)

1991 9

1990 27
1989 28
1988 20*

1987 15

*Excluding one-time restructuring charges




OTHER BUSINESSES

O‘ ther businesses, including Stanley H. Kaplan Educational Center, Legi-

Slate and American Personal Communications, recorded operating income
of $10.2 million in 1991, a decrease of 22 percent from operating income of $13.1 mil-
lion in 1990. Total revenue from other businesses rose 7 percent to $88.1 million, com-
pared with $82.6 million in 1990.

STANLEY H. KAPLAN EDUCATIONAL CENTER took steps to enhance
its position as the country’s leading test preparation company. Although operating
income declined, revenue and enrollments continued to grow. Expansion of Kaplan’s
new CPA review course resulted in double the number of students in this area.
Enrollments for the Medical College Admissions Test (MCAT) surged, as applications to
medical school sharply increased. Enrollments for the Graduate Record Exam (GRE)
course were the highest ever.

Changes in standardized tests required extensive product development efforts
for Kaplan’s courses preparing students for the Law School Admissions Test (LSAT) and
for medical licensing exams. Kaplan’s courses for American-trained and internationally
trained medical school graduates are the only nationally accredited courses in the test
preparation field.

Kaplan increased the number of permanent centers to 151 by adding centers
in several markets: Bedford and Denton, Texas; Las Vegas, Nevada; Charlotte, North
Carolina; Des Moines, Iowa; St. Petersburg, Florida; and Vancouver, British Columbia,
the fourth major market for Kaplan in Canada.

Through its international marketing program, which includes representatives
in 12 countries, Kaplan has significantly increased foreign interest and enrollments in
its courses. Kaplan licensees in Seoul and Panama City now are offering courses in per-
manent facilities. Classes also were taught in the United Arab Emirates by members of
Kaplan’s U.S. staff. Kaplan remains the only test preparation company approved by the
U.S. government to enroll non-immigrant students.

LEGI-SLATE, INc., the original and leading online information service
covering Congress and federal regulations, had its best year ever, with substantial gains
in revenue and operating income. '

A new computer was installed early in the year, increasing by 50 percent
the company’s capacity for serving a growing subscriber base. Legi-Slate’s subscribers
include the White House, the Cabinet departments and Congress, plus a who’s who of
domestic and foreign corporations, trade and professional associations, state and federal

agencies, law firms, foreign governments, labor unions, political parties and universities.




SMALL VICTORIES

AT KAPLAN...

¢ MARILYN MCKENNY, INDEPENDENT ADMINISTRATOR OF THE
PHILADELPHIA-AREA CENTERS SINCE JUNE 1990, REVERSED A TWO-YEAR DECLINE
IN THAT MARKET. SHE OUTPERFORMED ALL OTHER MAJOR CENTER GROUPS BY
INCREASING REVENUE AND DECREASING EXPENSES, BECOMING THE TOP ADMINIS-
TRATOR FOR 1991.

¢ VICE PRESIDENT OF THE PRODUCTION/DISTRIBUTION FACILITY, JEFF
COHEN HAS BEEN A KEY PART OF KAPLAN’S DEVELOPMENT FOR 24 YEARS.
MANAGING OVER 6,000 ITEMS WITH CLOCKWORK EFFICIENCY, JEFF’S TEAM IS
ALWAYS RESPONSIVE, NEVER LATE AND OFTEN MAKES THE IMPOSSIBLE A REALITY IN
GETTING MATERIALS ACROSS THE COUNTRY AND ABROAD.

¢ BoB VERINI WAS NAMED 1991 KAPLAN TEACHER OF THE YEAR.
DURING MANY YEARS IN KAPLAN’S RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT DEPART-
MENT, BOB ALSO HAS HELPED DEVELOP SEVERAL KAPLAN COURSES. HIS HUMOR,
WIT AND INTELLIGENCE DRAW LEGIONS OF STUDENTS TO HIS CLASSES.

4 A DYNAMO ON THE TELEPHONE, ELAINE VRATHOS SIGNED UP 70 PER-
CENT OF STUDENTS WHO CALLED BOSTON-AREA CENTERS, ENROLLING OVER 1,000
STUDENTS. ELAINE WAS NAMED 1991 ENROLLMENT COUNSELOR OF THE YEAR.

4 DIANNE LAKE, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR FOR GRADUATE PROGRAMS IN THE
RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT, LED FULL-SCALE REVISIONS

OF THE COURSES FOR THE LSAT AND MCAT.

AT LEGI-SLATE...

¢ JOE MERINGOLO AND TWO OTHER LAW LIBRARIANS CO-AUTHORED A
SECOND EDITION OF “A RESEARCH GUIDE TO CONGRESS: HOW TO MAKE CONGRESS
WORK FOR YOU,” WHICH INCLUDES NEW INFORMATION ABOUT ONLINE SERVICES
SUCH AS LEGI-SLATE. LEGI-SLATE FINANCED AND PUBLISHED THE NEW EDITION,
RELEASED IN DECEMBER 1991. PRE-PUBLICATION SALES HAVE ALREADY RECOVERED

LEGI-SLATE’S FINANCIAL INVESTMENT.IN THIS VITAL TOOL FOR THE RESEARCH COM-

MUNITY.




4 BRIAN BECKER SPEARHEADED A PROJECT THAT CULMINATED IN A NEW
“SEARCH ENGINE” USED BY LEGI-SLATE’S COMPUTERS TO LOOK THROUGH ENOR-
MOUS QUANTITIES OF TEXT FOR A PARTICULAR WORD OR PHRASE—AND DO IT VERY
QUICKLY. THE NEW SYSTEM INCORPORATES THE LATEST TECHNOLOGY IN THIS
SOPHISTICATED FIELD, SUPPLEMENTED BY BRIAN’S OWN INVENTIONS.

4 BoB HANSON GUIDED LEGI-SLATE’S SALES AND CUSTOMER SERVICE
STAFF TO ANOTHER YEAR IN AN UNBROKEN STRING OF RECORD SALES YEARS—
DESPITE THE RECESSION. OVER THE YEARS BOB HAS MOLDED A SALES AND SERVICE

GROUP WITH SKILLS THAT KEEP LEGI-SLATE IN ITS PREEMINENT POSITION.




A new Daily CFR™ (Code of Federal Regulations) service was introduced at
the beginning of 1991, joining the Current USC® (United States Code) service intro-
duced in 1990. With the addition of these new services, Legi-Slate subscribers now
can follow an issue from introduction as a bill through enactment and incorporation in
the United States Code, then through the regulatory process and incorporation in the
Code of Federal Regulations.

During 1991 two online services were introduced that represent a significant
new direction for Legi-Slate. The Markup service provides a timely briefing on commit-
tee actions on pending legislation. The Bill Overview and Outlook service provides a
brief summary of each bill, explaining in plain English its purpose and prospects for

passage.

OTHER BUSINESSES OPERATING REVENUES (§ in millions)

1991 88
1990 83

1989 71

1988 62

1987 54

OTHER BUSINESSES OPERATING INcOME ($ in millions)

1991 10
1990 13
1989 11

1988 9

1987 11

STANLEY H. KAPLAN EDUCATIONAL CENTER ENROLLMENTS (in thousands)

1991 143.6
1990 135.8
1989 122.2

1988 110.1

1987 107.9
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MANAGEMENT’S DiIscussioN AND ANALYSIS OF REsULTS
OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

This analysis should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements, notes thereto and the compara-
tive information relating to the company’s operating
divisions included in the Letter to Shareholders on pages 2
through 7.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—
1991 ComPARED TO 1990

In 1991 net income decreased 59 percent to $70.8
million, from net income of $174.6 million in 1990.
Earnings per share also declined 59 percent to $5.96, from
$14.45 last year. Included in 1991 results was an after-tax
charge of $47.9 million ($4.04 per share) related to the
adoption, effective at the beginning of the year, of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions” (SFAS No. 106). In the past the company
has reported its retiree health care and life insurance costs
on a pay-as-you-go basis. Under SFAS No. 106, these
future payments will be accrued and recognized over the
service period of an employee. Excluding this one-time
charge, the company’s net income would have decreased 32
percent to $118.7 million ($10.00 per share).

Also included in 1991 was a credit of $10 million
($.84 per share) resulting from a favorable settlement with
the Internal Revenue Service and an after-tax charge of
$3.5 million ($.30 per share) for severance and related
costs associated with a voluntary reduction of staff at The
Washington Post newspaper.

During 1991 the national recession had an adverse
impact on the advertising-related businesses of the
company. Total operating revenues in 1991 were $1,380
million, a decrease of 4 percent from $1,439 million in
1990, principally due to a 10-percent decline in advertising
revenues. This decrease was partially offset by a 7 percent
increase in circulation and subscriber revenues and a 6
percent rise in other revenues.

Revenues at the newspaper division fell 7 percent
from 1990 levels, primarily due to a 9 percent decrease in
advertising revenues. Advertising linage at The Washington
Post fell 13 percent, with the largest decline of 19 percent
occurring in classified volume, while retail and general
volume each decreased 11 percent. Circulation revenues
increased 3 percent in 1991 as a result of a price increase
and the continued public demand for news.

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY

Broadcast division revenues decreased 9 percent,
reflecting the effect of the recession on advertisers, who
reduced spending in both the local and national markets.
Local advertising revenues declined 7 percent, while
national revenues fell 10 percent.

At Newsweek total revenues declined 4 percent in
1991. Advertising revenues decreased 11 percent,
primarily due to reduced volume at the domestic edition
and partially offset by the effect of rate increases.
Newsweek circulation revenues rose 7 percent over 1990
levels. The number of subscribers at both the domestic and
international editions grew 3 percent in 1991, while the
average number of copies sold at the newsstand increased
8 percent for both editions. During the year the domestic
edition published 56 issues, one more than in 1990; the
international edition published 51 issues, one less than
last year.

Cable division revenues in 1991 rose 10 percent
over the prior year. Contributing to the increase were a 4
percent rise in the number of basic subscribers, higher
rates and increased advertising and pay-per-view revenues
at the domestic systems. The number of subscribers in the
company’s cable systems in the United Kingdom rose to

over 8,000.

In 1991 revenues from other businesses—Stanley
H. Kaplan Educational Center, Legi-Slate and American
Personal Communications—rose 7 percent compared to
1990, primarily due to a 6 percent increase in enrollments
at Kaplan.

Total operating costs and expenses were $1,187
million, an increase of 3 percent over $1,157 million in
1990. Included in 1991 operating expenses were the
following pre-tax charges: $7 million related to the
adoption of SFAS No. 106 and $6 million for severance and
related costs associated with a voluntary reduction of staff
at The Washington Post newspaper. Also included in 1991
expenses was a write down of the company’s programming
rights to “The Cosby Show.” Excluding these charges in
1991, total operating costs and expenses increased
approximately 1 percent over 1990. This increase reflects
normal increases in payroll and related fringe benefit
costs, distribution costs and depreciation expenses,
partially offset by a significant decrease in the cost of
newsprint and magazine paper.
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Income from operations declined 32 percent in
1991 as the recession continued to take its toll on the
media industry. Operating margins at most of the divisions
also were adversely affected by the adoption of SFAS No.
106. The newspaper division’s operating margin fell to 14
percent, from 21 percent in 1990. Included in 1991 were
the costs related to the voluntary reduction of staff
mentioned previously. The operating margin at the
broadcast division decreased from 38 percent to 30 percent
in 1991, which included the write down of programming
rights to “The Cosby Show.” Newsweek’s operating margin
declined to 3 percent, from 8 percent in the prior year. In
1991 operating income included an additional $5 million in
postal costs and accelerated amortization of leasehold
improvements related to the expiration of an operating
lease. The cable division’s operating margin rose from 20
percent to 22 percent in 1991, while the margin for the
company’s other businesses decreased from 16 percent in
1990 to 12 percent in 1991.

The company’s equity in earnings of affiliates for
1991 was a loss of $1.9 million, compared with earnings of
$6.2 million in 1990. Continued weakness at the company’s
newsprint manufacturing affiliates contributed to the loss in
1991. In 1990 affiliate results reflected higher earnings
from Cowles Media Company, which reported nonrecurring
gains on the sales of two small newspapers.

Net interest expense totaled $.4 million in 1991,
compared with net interest income of $4.7 million in 1990.
Included in 1991 were a fee of $2.1 million related to the
$50 million prepayment on the company’s 10.68 percent
unsecured promissory notes and interest of $1.6 million
related to the tax settlement with the Internal Revenue
Service, mentioned previously.

In 1991 and 1990 other expense included the
costs related to the disposition of certain plant, property
and equipment.

The effective tax rate, before the cumulative effect
of the change in accounting principle, decreased from 40.1
percent in 1990 to 37.6 percent in 1991, as the favorable
settlement with the Internal Revenue Service significantly
lowered the effective tax rate.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—
1990 ComPARED TO 1989

Net income was $174.6 million in 1990, a
decrease of 12 percent from net income of $197.9 million
in 1989. Earnings per share decreased only 7 percent to
$14.45, from $15.50 in 1989, as a result of a lower number
of shares outstanding throughout the year.

In 1990 total revenues were down less than one
percent to $1,439 million, from $1,444 million in 1989.
Advertising revenues fell 4 percent, reflecting a soft
advertising climate and a weakening in the national
economy. Offsetting this decline were a 7 percent increase
in circulation and subscriber revenues and a 12 percent
rise in other revenues.

At the newspaper division revenues decreased 5
percent in 1990. Although advertising volume at The
Washington Post declined 12 percent, advertising revenues
fell only 6 percent, as price increases mitigated part of the
volume decrease. Both retail and classified linage showed
declines of almost 13 percent, reflecting general economic
weakness in the Washington, D.C., market. Preprint
volume, on the other hand, rose 7 percent as a result of
increased daily demand for inserts by advertisers, some of
which were formerly users of ROP. Circulation revenues
rose 1 percent, consistent with the growth in subscribers.

Revenues at the broadcast division fell 2 percent
despite an additional $8 million in political advertising,
most of which occurred in the third and fourth quarters of
1990. Local and network revenues fell 5.5 percent and 10
percent, respectively, while national revenues benefited
from the rise in political advertising and increased 3.5
percent in-1990.

Newsweek revenues increased 2 percent on the
strength of an 8 percent gain in circulation revenues,
which was partially offset by a 2 percent decline in
advertising revenues. Advertising volume was down at the
domestic division despite the publication of two additional
issues in 1990 (55 issues versus 53 issues in 1989). The
rise in circulation revenues was attributable to higher rates
and increased newsstand sales. At the international
division, the publication of one additional issue in 1990
(52 issues versus 51 issues in 1989) contributed to
increases in both advertising and circulation revenues.
Advertising volume rose 2 percent, while average
circulation grew 4 percent in 1990.

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY




Operating revenues at the cable division increased
12.5 percent over 1989 levels. Contributing to the increase
were a 5 percent rise in the number of basic subscribers,
higher rates and increased advertising volume.

Revenues from other businesses—Stanley H.
Kaplan Educational Center and Legi-Slate—rose 16
percent in 1990. Increased enrollments in the core courses
and newly acquired CPA courses at Kaplan were the major
contributors to the gain.

Operating costs and expenses in 1990 increased 2
percent to $1,157 million, from $1,130 million in 1989.
This rise in costs over 1989 levels was primarily due to
normal increases in payroll and related benefits costs,
depreciation expense related to additional capital
expenditures at the newspaper and cable divisions, and
amortization expense related to acquisition activity at the
cable division. Cost increases were offset in part by
newsprint expense, which declined 10 percent in 1990.

Income from operations was down 10 percent in
1990, basically due to the downturn in advertising that
continued throughout most of the year. The newspaper
division’s operating margin in 1990 was 21 percent, down
from 24 percent in 1989. In 1990 the operating margin at
the broadcast division fell to 38 percent, from 39.5 percent
in 1989. At Newsweek and the cable division, operating
margins were maintained at 1989 levels, which were 8
percent and 20 percent, respectively. The operating margin
at the company’s other businesses increased to almost 16
percent in 1990, up from 15 percent in 1989.

The company’s equity in earnings of its affiliated
companies was $6.2 million, compared to earnings of $10.0
million in 1989. Substantially lower earnings at the
company’s newsprint affiliates, partially offset by higher
earnings at Cowles Media Company (which included gains
on the sales of two small newspapers), was the major
contributor to the decline in 1990. During 1990 the
company’s ownership in Cowles Media Company changed
from 26 percent to 28 percent.

Interest income, net of interest expense, decreased
during 1990, principally due to smaller balances of
investable cash (that resulted from the repurchase of
treasury shares) and lower interest rates. In 1990 and 1989
other expense primarily included costs associated with the
sale and abandonment of certain plant, property and
equipment. The effective tax rate in 1990 was 40.1
percent, compared with 40.7 percent in 1989.

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY

FINANCIAL CONDITION: CAPITAL RESOURCES AND

LiQuipITY

During the period 1989 through 1991 the
company spent approximately $540 million on purchases
of additional property, plant and equipment, investments in
new businesses, various other capital programs, and the
repurchase of Class B common stock. At the end of 1991
the company made a $50 million prepayment on its 10.68
percent unsecured promissory notes. In January 1992 the
company made the final debt payment of $25 million on
the 10.68 percent notes. Despite this, since the end of
1990 working capital has increased by approximately $8
million, and at December 29, 1991, the company had $106
million in cash and cash equivalents, $174 million in
marketable securities and $77 million in debt.

In 1992 the company estimates that it will spend
approximately $80 million - $90 million for plant and
equipment, principally for the expansion of cable
operations in the United Kingdom and the completion of
various projects at the newspaper division. It expects to
fund these expenditures from cash flow from operations.

The company’s effective tax rate in 1992 is
expected to be approximately 43 percent, based upon the
existing rules of accounting for income taxes. In February
1992 the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (SFAS No. 109),
which significantly changes the approach and methodology
of accounting for income taxes. Adoption of SFAS No. 109
is not expected to significantly affect the company’s
financial position. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, the
new rules must be adopted by 1993.

During 1991 and 1990 the company repurchased
42,900 and 641,500 shares, respectively, of its Class B
common stock at a cost of $7 million and $163 million,
respectively. In 1990 the company completed the
repurchase of shares under a 700,000 share buyback
program begun in 1987 and commenced a new program
that authorized the repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares,
of which 626,120 remained at the end of 1991. The
annual dividend rate in 1992 remains at $4.20 per share.

In management’s opinion the changes in financial
position mentioned above or anticipated in the near future
are not expected to impair the company’s liquidity position.
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
The Washington Post Company

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
appearing on pages 23 through 37 present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Washington
Post Company and its subsidiaries at December 29, 1991
and December 30, 1990, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the
period ended December 29, 1991, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards which require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

As discussed in Note I to the financial statements, the
Company adopted, effective at the beginning of 1991,
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions.”

- -

e

Washington, D.C.
February 4, 1992

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended

December 29, December 30, December 31,
(In thousands, except share amounts) 1991 1990* 1989*
OPERATING REVENUES
BOVETHBIRG T e e L $ 852,438 $ 943,676 $ 986,335
CATCT AEON B SHINORIREY - . & o5 bore o s Eiolie atei B o oy e 412,937 386,756 361,068
E L R T SR e e e R s S B I R o 114,886 108,208 96,691
1,380,261 1,438,640 1,444,094
OPERATING CosTs AND EXPENSES
ODEEARIND o i sl e i S G R 775,936 778,574 162,157
Selling, general and administrative. ..................c...... 337,492 309,807 305,795
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment. . . 58,695 53,509 48,756
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles................. 15212 14,982 13,695
1,187,395 1,156,872 1,130,403
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS . ... ..connsioieoimossossiosisoiins 192,866 281,768 313,691
Equityin eamningaot athiliates | .. .. ..o o s S (1,856) 6,235 10,042
O T T e T S e e WS S e S 17,382 21,342 28,599
Inferestexpente snll Arde . L e (17,759) (16,653) (17,027)
Diheredpense mele s T Sl L s i g st e 9 (412) (1,266) (1:312)
INcCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND CUMULATIVE
EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE......... 190,221 291,426 333,993
PROVISION BOBR ENCOME TAREE ... o seinessssans s 71,500 116,850 136,100
INcoOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE. ....oovviuuennnn.. 118,721 174,576 197,893
CumMuLATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN METHOD
OF ACCOUNTING FOR OTHER POSTRETIREMENT
BENEFITS (NET OF TAXES OF $30,311) ............... (47,897) — —
CE Ll T R S A PG T (T M B SR A T R $ 70,824 $ 174,576 $ 197,893
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ... ..ooovvuuunn.. $ 10.00 $ 14.45 $ 15.50
CumMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE
N RACCOUNTING PRINCIFBLE ., .\ . 0iainssion s vieet e s (4.04) — —
MET BRCOWE 0 s iR s o e o e e s S $ 5.96

* Certain amounts have been reclassified in 1990 and 1989 to conform with 1991 presentation.

The information on pages 28 through 37 is an integral part of the financial statements.
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$ 14.45

$ 15.50
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 29, December 30,
(In thousands, except share amounts) 1991 1990
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CanhandivashCamivalentesn o o Dm0 A S N e $ 106,122 $ 171,133
M kel aldediounilies oo imiie Gl et i) e 174,238 105,384
gcounianeteivablemet o alal b ol Sl e B 138,604 131,839
L T e SRR o e S S SRR e R TR NGO £ DRSS (NS 19,563 25,202
Bvapransaiphife srevaiefDan st ioden. Sl Towmarda L e C o T ST 17,314 22723
Ofherentrenb anseln i el D B e o s i s ey e g T 16,378 15,388
472,219 471,669
g T R T T L T T T R m B ST E RS £ s e el St i 5 S el 181,764 168,512
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LT e e e e speheenepc s ot SRR ATCaIE L S R T L 156,197 139,875
Michinery, eqUIDMERE ARATIXEUIES, .. . D00 oo 5« srowsio o s aidtias s dieste bt s 537,206 495,511
Lt ST T e e S e o T S N 28,761 29,047
722,164 664,433
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. . ..............ccovveeeuunnnn.... (374,447) (331,691)
347,717 332,742
L Ty e e e i M S A e s e NN SRS BNV C o 7 PSP At 26,904 26,143
e B T RGN K o £ SRR NI N TN N O 15,692 36,094
390,313 394,979
GooDbwILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES, less accumulated amortization of
e R e AR G T T S WA S e St e S 320,641 333,844
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS ... ...00iutiutinianeensonenessnsons 122,724 127,505
$1.487,661 $1.496,509
The information on pages 28 through 37 is an integral part of the financial statements.

24 THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY



December 29, December 30,
(In thousands, except share amounts) 1991 1990
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and dcorded habilities. ... 0. o ulins ve e e ph e et T $ 160,967 $ 175,387
Eodernl e s tale T neumIe RaErR st TS e D S e e e L 26,053 23,741
Deferred SubmoHpHEn rEURINE 5 o e v U T i S TR L e AT 76,240 71,734
Chrrent DOTHONOT ORI oDl - L ... U S T 0 T e S0 e e o lae 50y e oot oV ) 25,000 25,000
288,260 295,862
LT A T T e i e e M S i et s (e i e ST D et 175,186 86,269
LN N RN DB . - e e tens o vas el tsscnn tn e s e 58 At nia e 51,915 126,988
DEFERRED TNCOMBITRARES .\ ... st il as slas & 08 646 s @ £ P25 0 3 b s o7i R 48,015 82,278
563,376 591,397
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY
Preferred stock, $1 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized . ....................... —_ —
Common stock
Class A common stock, $1 par value, 7,000,000 shares authorized;
1,843,250 and 1,852,378 shares issued and outstanding ...........0.......... 1,843 1.852
Class B common stock, $1 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized; 18,156,750
and 18,147,622 shares issued; 9,988,530 and 10,008,691 shares outstanding. . . . .. 18357 18,148
Capitaliin exoess GEPRINVAINE it a0 tiiin o e 5500t e bie 4ists 6 ierhie, Slotasvis aoiersnsainie s 18,725 16,641
Betamed BRminpRE et s e e s i b v v S A e R 1,376,408 1,355,456
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment. . . ........................... 6,870 4,170
Cost of 8,168,220 and 8,138,931 shares of Class B common stock held in Treasury . . . .. (497,718) (491,155)
924,285 905,112
$1,487,661 $1,496,509
The information on pages 28 through 37 is an integral part of the financial statements.
THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows

Fiscal Year Ended

December 29, December 30, December 31,
(In thousands) 1991 1990 1989

CAsH FLows FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NeRmMEORIeR RN, S S e T $ 70,824 $174,576 $197,893
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided '
by operating activities:

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ........... 78,208 — -
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment . . 58,695 53,509 48,756
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles ................ 15272 14,982 13,695
AMarhZationiol BIOBTAB FIGHES: .0 i s oiovis o bis die s b s s o 28,939 26,215 23,673
Provision for doubtful 8ecotnts. . . . o oot ivivn dodnosnesn s 52,920 52,900 37,582
Increase in accrued interest and income taxes payable .......... 391 3,141 11,247
Provision for deferred income taxes .. ...............c..c...... (34,336) 11,289 8,737
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) in accounts receivable .. .......nuonnnasieenns (59,685) (50,742) (41,679)
Decrease (increase) in inventories ...................... 5,639 (6,404) 9,008
(Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . ... (978) (5,053) (2,733)
Gher S LTI SR A s e R s s 14,012 (13,480) (5,182)
Net cash provided by operating activities ............... 229,901 260,933 300,997
CAsH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment .................... (55,657) (73,249) (80,712)
Purchases of marketable securities ........................... (249,057) (157,344) (106,685)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities. .. ................. 180,203 91,207 57,169
Tavestments in certain DUSINEREES . . . os s wsuinsin bis s coaiins st (19,301) (31,121) —
B NS T PEOREAT BIRIIB o L iie s o s an e st e e (19,917) (20,779) (28,005)
B s e L T 969 336 578
Net cash (used) by investing activities. ................. (162,760) (190,950) (157,655)
CAsH FLows FRoM FINANCING ACTIVITIES!
Brncpal paymentSOIABBELE . < ot st e s s (75,000) (2,742) (966)
S T O T e e i e A RS AR e G AT (49,872) (48,541) (23,542)
Commonwhates:reptirchased! . v b g3 e Ll i (7,430) (163,267) (107,156)
Ui e SR NI e L S e S e e 150 99 1,285
Net cash (used) by financing activities ................. (132,152) (214,451) (130,379)
NeET (DEcCREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
BOUIVALENTS . .t i m b e s il oo s e a e o it (65,011) (144.,468) 12,963
CASH AND CAsH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ..... 171,133 315,601 302,638
CASH AND CAsSH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ........... $106,122 $171,133 $315,601

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLow INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
SRCRERENAREE i S B S e e R S e e S $ 72,300 $102,300 $115,300
VT A U S e S L e S TG e et g Rk T $ 19,500 $ 15,900 $ 16,700

NONCcASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

ERORTInI FIERTSMOAUITHE. « b s f0s i s ok s s e R s s 1 $ 19,800 $ 11,000 $ 41,900

The information on pages 28 through 37 is an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

Cumulative
Foreign
Class A Class B Capital in Currency
Common  Common Excess of Retained Translation Treasury
(In thousands, except share amounts) Stock Stock Par Value Earnings Adjustment Stock
BALANCE JANUARY 1, 1989 ........... $2,059  $17,941  $13,234 $1,055,070  $1,979 $(222,043)
Net income fortheyear.................. 197,893
Dividends—$1.84 pershare . ............. (23,542)
Repurchase of 389,427 shares of
Class B eommonstock: .. ... ou s e (107,156)

Issuance of 13,404 shares of Class B
common stock, net of restricted stock
award torfeatires L S0 L0 L e s 2,457 423
Conversion of 206,324 shares of
Class A common stock to Class B
COMMOREteek. o5 e oo aniil et (207) 207
Change in foreign currency translation
Adiusiment . T e e 1,952
then' T Lo utl el S R e e 1,255

BALANCE DEcEMBER 31, 1989 ........ 1,852 18,148 16,946 1,229,421 3,931 (328,776)

Net incomefor the-yeart-s. . Shuinl vov i, o 174,576
Dividends—$4.00 per share . ............. (48,541)
Repurchase of 641,500 shares of

Class' B conirtipa stook’ .77 . 0o Vv o (163,267)
Issuance of 15,547 shares of Class B

common stock, net of restricted stock

award forfertuyes 0L NI UL SR s (514) 888
Change in foreign currency translation

AdiEtmenl. o ot L e R 239
87117, e SRS o S S NS T U o g [ TN 209

BALANCE DEcemBER 30, 1990 ........ 1852 18,148 16,641 1,355,456 4,170 (491,155)

Net income fortheyear.................. 70,824
Dividends—$4.20 per share . ............. (49,872)
Repurchase of 42,900 shares of

Class B common stook . ;... s ¢ 46 oo ahinss.s : (7,430)
Issuance of 13,611 shares of Class B !

common stock, net of restricted stock

AWHEG ToT aIOres | s s o it s e i 1,833 867
Conversion of 9,128 shares of

Class A common stock to Class B

STV T 6] it s Y e L 9) 9
Change in foreign currency translation
T T e e i S 2,700
G AR el ot Sl S e e o 251
BALANCE DECEMBER 29, 1991 ........ $1,843 $18,157  $18,725 $1,376,408 $6,870 $(497,718)

The information on pages 28 through 37 is an integral part of the financial statements.
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NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PoLIcIES

The Washington Post Company (“the company”)
operates principally in four areas of the media business:
newspaper publishing, television broadcasting, magazine
publishing and cable television. Segment data is set forth in
Note M.

Fiscal Year. The company reports on a 52-53
week fiscal year ending on the Sunday nearest December
31. The fiscal year 1991, which ended on December 29,
1991, included 52 weeks, as did 1990 and 1989. With the
exception of the newspaper publishing operations,
subsidiaries of the company report on a calendar year
basis.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying
financial statements include the accounts of the company
and its subsidiaries; significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents. Short-term investments with
maturities of ninety days or less are considered cash equi-
valents.

Marketable Securities. Marketable securities
consist of debt instruments that mature over ninety days
from the purchase date and are stated at cost plus accrued
interest, which approximates fair market value.

Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower
of cost or market. Cost of newsprint is determined by the
first-in, first-out method, and cost of magazine paper is
determined by the specific-cost method.

Investments in Affiliates. The company uses the
equity method of accounting for its investments in and
earnings of affiliates.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property,
plant and equipment is recorded at cost and includes
interest capitalized in connection with major long-term
construction projects. Replacements and major
improvements are capitalized; maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment: 3 to 12 years for machinery and
equipment, 20 to 50 years for buildings and 5 to 20 years
for land improvements. The costs of leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful
lives or the terms of the respective leases.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles. Goodwill and
other intangibles represent the excess of the cost of
acquiring subsidiary companies over the fair values of such
companies’ net tangible assets at the dates of acquisition.
Goodwill and other intangibles acquired prior to October
1970, the effective date of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 17, are not being amortized because in the
opinion of the company there has been no diminution of
the value of such assets. Goodwill and other intangibles
acquired subsequently are being amortized by use of the
straight-line method over various periods up to 40 years.

Deferred Program Rights. The broadcast
subsidiaries are parties to agreements that entitle them to
show motion pictures and syndicated programs on
television. The unamortized cost of these rights and the
liability for future payments under these agreements are
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
unamortized cost is charged to operations using
accelerated amortization rates for motion pictures and
accelerated or straight-line rates for syndicated programs.

Deferred Subscription Revenue and Magazine
Subscription Procurement Costs. Deferred subscription
revenue, which primarily represents amounts received from
customers in advance of magazine and newspaper
deliveries, is included in revenues over the subscription
term. Deferred subscription revenue to be earned after one
year is included in “Other Liabilities” in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Subscription procurement costs are
charged to operations as incurred.

Deferred income taxes result
from timing differences in the recognition of certain

Income Taxes.

revenue and expense items, including pensions,
postretirement benefits other than pensions, and
depreciation expenses, for tax and financial reporting
purposes, and from timing differences in the recognition of
investment tax credits that for financial reporting purposes
are being applied as a reduction of income taxes over the
depreciable lives of the related assets.

Foreign Currency Translation. Gains and
losses on foreign currency transactions and translation of
accounts of the company’s foreign operations are
recognized currently in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. Gains and losses on translation of the company’s
equity interests in its foreign affiliates are not included in
the Consolidated Statements of Income but are reported
separately and accumulated in the “Cumulative foreign
currency translation adjustment” in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY




Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.
The company provides certain health care and life
insurance benefits for retired employees. Effective in
1991, the expected cost of providing these postretirement
benefits is accrued over the years that employees render
the necessary service. Previously these costs were
expensed as claims were paid. The cumulative effect of
adopting this method of accounting for previously
unrecognized years of service has been recognized in net
income in 1991 as a change in accounting principle. This
change in method is defined within Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 106.

B. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The company’s marketable securities at December
29, 1991, and December 30, 1990, include the following

(in thousands):

1991 1990

U.S. Government and Government

agency obligations . . .......... $ 87,397 $ 95,368
State obligatiensi: vy Sl e & 20,673 10,016
Commercial paper:; 1. .47 «iwnii. 66,168 —

$174,238  $105,384

C€C. AccouNTs RECEIVABLE AND ACCOUNTS
PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts receivable at December 29, 1991, and
December 30, 1990, consist of the following (in thousands):

1991 1990
Accounts receivable, less estimated
returns, doubtful accounts
and allowances of
$35,642 and $33,228 ......... $131,294  $121,992
Oihey s R e e 7,310 9,847
$138,604  $131,839
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Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at
December 29, 1991, and December 30, 1990, consist of
the following (in thousands):

1991 1990
Accounts payable and accrued
EXPBIRCHEL . . c-dicess o wibin s 5 $ 98,827 $112,839
Accrued payroll and related
Benehits" 0, T R 27,038 24,779
Accrued interest expense . ...... 1018 9,362
Film contracts payable.......... 19,955 19,066
Due to affiliates (newsprint) .. ... 8,029 9,341
$160,967 $175,387

D. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

The company’s investments in affiliates at December 29,
1991, and December 30, 1990, include the following (in
thousands):

1991 1990
Cowles Media Company. . ....... $ 79,952 $ 81,638
Newsprintmills™.". . ... 0000 . 5. . 73,616 80,213
RIENET % s o ine s ingregceiie s & siss 28,196 6,061
$181,764 $168,512

The company’s investments in affiliates in 1991
and 1990 include a 28 percent interest in the stock of
Cowles Media Company, which owns and operates the
Minneapolis Star and Tribune and several other smaller
properties. In 1989 the company owned a 26 percent
interest.

The company’s interest in newsprint mills includes
a 49 percent interest in the common stock of Bowater
Mersey Paper Company Limited, which owns and operates a
newsprint mill in Nova Scotia; a one-third limited
partnership interest in Bear Island Paper Company, which
owns and operates a newsprint mill near Richmond,
Virginia; and a one-third limited partnership interest in Bear
Island Timberlands Company, which owns timberland and
supplies Bear Island Paper Company with a major portion of
its wood requirements. Operating costs and expenses of the
company include newsprint supplied by Bowater Mersey
Paper Company and Bear Island Paper Company and used
in operations, the cost of which was $59,200,000 in 1991,
$60,400,000 in 1990, and $65,500,000 in 1989.

The company’s other investments include a 50
percent common stock interest in the International Herald
Tribune, which is a newspaper based near Paris, and a 50
percent common stock interest in the Los Angeles Times-
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Washington Post News Service, Inc. In 1990 and 1989 the
company owned a one-third common stock interest in the
International Herald Tribune. In 1991 the company
purchased a 30 percent common stock interest in The
Gaithersburg Gazette, Inc., which publishes eleven weekly
newspapers in Montgomery, Frederick and Carroll Counties,
Maryland.

Summarized financial data for the affiliates’
operations are as follows (in thousands):

1991 1990 1989

Financial Position

Working capital . . ..... $ (93,737) $ (76,521) $(56,090)
Property, plant and

equipment .......... 478,502 495,932 518,577
Total assets .......... 759,850 770071 " 770,525
Long-term debt ....... 212,923 225,938 245,468
Netequity .. ..covaion 203,997 212,938 243,920
Results of Operations
Operating revenues . ... $644,814 $670,345 $674,899
Operating income . . ... 30,509 34,712 76,109
Net income. .......... 6,543 34,162 38,129

The following table summarizes the activity of the
company’s investments in affiliates (in thousands):

1991 1990
Beginning investment. ........... $168,512 $167,060
Equity in earnings. ............. (1,856) 6,235
Dividends and distributions
e e RSN T (5,217) (5,989)
Additional investments........... 17,841 680
Foreign currency translation. . .. . .. 2,484 526

Ending investment $181,764 $168,512

At December 29, 1991, the unamortized excess of
the company’s investments over its equity in the underlying
net assets of its affiliates at the date of acquisition was
approximately $99,000,000. Amortization included in
equity in earnings of affiliates for the years ended
December 29, 1991, December 30, 1990, and December
31, 1989, was $2,550,000, $2,250,000 and $2,650,000,

respectively.

E. INcomME TAXES

The provision for income taxes, exclusive of the
benefit related to the cumulative effect of the adoption of
SFAS No. 106, consists of the following (in thousands):

Current  Deferred
1991
QS Eederaln’ iR I TR $ 60,732 $(3,195)
55 et e e e g K e o 567 (528)
State andloeal o0 SN L L 14,226 (302)
$ 75,525 $ (4,025)
1990
S Nederal o i S e T $ 85,385 $ 9,489
Boreignl. s S sddetalole o 412 (454)
Stateduddoeallid: o . Q805 L8 3uily 19,764 2,254
$105,561  $11,289
1989
IS sEaderal & i, (e ST $104,240 $ 6,891
0T N Il U RN R B 277 255
SiatE and ol s s o s e 22,846 1,591
$127,363 $ 8,737

Deferred tax is attributable to the following (in
thousands):

1991 1990 1989
Net pension credits
in excess
of contributions. .. .... $ 5,335 $ 7,008 $ 5,206

Accrued postretirement

benefit expenses

(eumentyean)s. b ias (3,163)
Difference between tax

depreciation and

depreciation for

financial reporting

PUIPORER: & c1sscsinthine i (2,437) 3,338 3,159
Deferral of investment tax
credits for financial
reporting purposes . ... (1,350) (539)  (1,094)
Otheri i s (2,410) 1,392 1,466
$4,025) $11,289 §$ 8,737
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The provision for income taxes exceeds the
amount of taxes determined by applying the U.S. Federal
statutory rate of 34 percent to income before taxes as a
result of the following (in thousands):

1991 1990 1989
U.S. Federal income taxes $64,675 § 99,085 $113,558

State and local taxes
net of Federal income

tax benefit .. ... 0.0, 9,190 14,532 16,128
Amortization of goodwill

not deductible for income

taxX PUIPOSES: .« « siasios 2,805 2,887 2,640
Settlement with IRS. . . .. (10,013) — —_
Ofer . e e 4,843 346 3,774

Provision for income taxes $71,500 $116,850 $136,100

Contributing to the lower effective tax rate in 1991
was a credit of $10 million resulting from a favorable
settlement with the Internal Revenue Service, which
related to adjustments to prior year’s income taxes.

In February 1992 the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (SFAS No. 109), which significantly changes the
approach and methodology of accounting for income taxes.
SFAS No. 109, which has not been adopted by the
company, requires the implementation of the liability
method of accounting for income taxes and the adjustment
of deferred taxes to reflect changes in tax rates at the time
they are enacted. The adoption of SFAS No. 109 is not
expected to significantly affect the company’s financial
position. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, the new rules
must be adopted in 1993.
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F. DEBT

Long-term debt of the company as of December
29, 1991, and December 30, 1990, is summarized as
follows (in thousands):

1991 1990

10.68 percent unsecured
promissory notes due 1991-1994 .. $25,000 $100,000
10.1 percent unsecured European

Currency Unit notes due 1996 .... 50,515 50,588
10.875 percent unsecured

Eurodollar notes due 1995. . ..... 1,400 1,400
Less amounts included in

current liabilities .............. (25,000)  (25,000)

$51,915 $126,988

In December 1991 the company prepaid
$50,000,000 of the 10.68 percent unsecured promissory
notes. A related $2,100,000 prepayment fee was included
in interest expense for the year.

Annual maturities of long-term debt based on
existing loan repayment schedules are $25,000,000 in
1992, $1,400,000 in 1995, and $50,000,000 in 1996.

On January 6, 1992, the company made the final
debt payment of $25,000,000 on the 10.68 percent
unsecured promissory notes. Accordingly, as of such date,
there are no restrictions on retained earnings or other
aspects of the company’s financial operations.

G. CAPITAL STOCK, STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK

AWARDS

Capital Stock. Each share of Class A common
stock and Class B common stock participates equally in
dividends. The Class B stock has limited voting rights and
as a class has the right to elect 30 percent of the board of
directors; the Class A stock has unlimited voting rights
including the right to elect a majority of the board of
directors. In 1991, 9,128 shares of the company’s Class A
common stock were converted into an equal number of
shares of the company’s Class B common stock.
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During 1991 and 1990 the company purchased a
total of 42,900 and 641,500 shares, respectively, of its
Class B common stock at a cost of approximately

$7,430,000 and $163,267,000.

Stock Options. In 1971 the company adopted a
Stock Option Plan and reserved 1,400,000 shares of Class
B common stock for options to be granted under the plan.
The purchase price of the shares covered by an option
cannot be less than the fair market value on the granting
date. At December 29, 1991, there were 164,450 shares
reserved for issuance under the Stock Option Plan. Of this
number, 125,000 shares were subject to options
outstanding and 39,450 shares were available for future
grants. Changes in options outstanding for the years ended
December 29, 1991, and December 30, 1990, were as
follows:

1991 1990

Number  Average Number Average

of Option of Option

Shares Price  Shares  Price
Beginning of year 53,000 $227.39 52,000 $215.88
Granted. . ..... 73,500 283.11 4,500 205.50
Exercised . . ... (750) 199.38 (3,500)  28.25
Canceled. . . ... (750) 199.38 —— e
End of year ... .. 125,000 260.49 53,000 227.39

Of the shares covered by options outstanding at
the end of 1991, 30,625 are now exercisable, 18,625 will
become exercisable in 1992, 12,875 will become
exercisable in 1993, 7,000 will become exercisable in
1994, 5,875 will become exercisable in 1995, and 50,000

will become exercisable in 1999.

Stock Awards. In 1982 the company adopted a
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan that, among other
provisions, authorizes the awarding of stock to key
employees. Stock awards made under the Incentive
Compensation Plan are subject to the general restriction
that stock awarded to a participant will be forfeited and
revert to company ownership if the participant’s
employment terminates before the end of a specified period
of service to the company. At December 29, 1991, there
were 153,559 shares reserved for issuance under the
Incentive Compensation Plan. Of this number, 25,461
shares were subject to awards outstanding and 128,098
shares were available for future awards. Activity related to
stock awards for the years ended December 29, 1991, and
December 30, 1990, was as follows:

1991 1990
Number  Average Number Average
of Award of Award
Shares Price Shares  Price

Awards Outstanding

Beginning of year 30,812 $182.80 30,930 $182.01

Awarded . ..... 16,031 197.18 221 282.50
Vested........ (18,212) 164.64  (159) 156.00
Forfeited . . . . . . (3,170) 200.71  (180) 192.51
End of year . . . . . 25461  202.62 30812 182.80

For the share awards outstanding at December 29,
1991, the aforementioned restriction will lapse in January
1993 for 11,478 shares and in January 1995 for 13,983

shares.

Average Number of Shares Outstanding.
Earnings per share are based on the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during each
year, adjusted for the dilutive effect of shares issuable
under outstanding stock options, as well as stock awards
made under the Incentive Compensation Plan. The
average number of shares outstanding was 11,876,000 for

1991, 12,081,000 for 1990, and 12,768,000 for 1989.
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H. RETIREMENT PLANS

The company and its subsidiaries have various
pension and incentive savings plans and in addition
contribute to several multi-employer plans on behalf of
certain union-represented employee groups. Substantially
all of the company’s employees, including some located in
foreign countries, are covered by these plans. Pension cost
(benefit) for all retirement plans combined was $3,000,000
in 1991, $(4,000,000) in 1990 and $(900,000) in 1989.
Included in 1991 are costs of $4,900,000 associated with
the voluntary reduction of staff at The Washington Post
newspaper.

The costs for the company’s defined benefit
pension plans are actuarially determined and include
amortization of prior service costs over various periods,
generally not exceeding 20 years. The company’s policy is
to fund the costs accrued for its defined benefit plans.

The following table sets forth the funded status of
the defined benefit plans and amounts included in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 29, 1991, and
December 30, 1990 (in thousands):

1991 1990

Actuarial present value of

accumulated plan benefits,

including vested benefits of

$122,058 and $97,052......... $127,366  $100,621
Plan assets at fair value, primarily

listed securities « ....cvveeins. $402,052 $324.,479
Projected benefit obligation for

service rendered to date. ....... (156,369) (126,958)
Plan assets in excess of projected

benefit obligation ............ 245,683 197,521
Prior service cost not yet recognized

in periodic pension cost. ....... 16,219 3,332

Less unrecognized net gain from

past experience different from

that-assunredissicc il @ Lusitiss (115,455)  (59,876)
Less unrecognized net asset (tran-

sition amount) being recognized

over approximately 17 years .... (84,266)  (91,931)
Prepaid pensioncost............ $ 62,181 $ 49,046
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The net pension credits for the years ended
December 29, 1991, December 30, 1990, and December
31, 1989, included the following components (in
thousands):

1991 1990 1989

Service cost for benefits

earned during the

PETIOL., ;. oo s vin s $ 7200 ¢ 6,383 § 5967
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation . . . 10,327 8,672 8,069
Actual return on plan

assets” . il (84,880)  (6,312)  (56,009)
Net amortization and

deferval o070V sl 50,471  (26,056) 29,198
Cost of voluntary

reduction in staff ... 4,916 s —
Net pension credit. ... $(11,966) $(17,313) $(12,775)

The weighted average discount rate and rate of
increase in future compensation levels used for 1991, 1990
and 1989 in determining the actuarial present value of the
projected benefit obligation were 7.5 percent and 4
percent, respectively. The expected long-term rate of
return on assets was 9 percent in 1991 and 1990, and 8
percent in 1989.

Contributions to multi-employer pension plans,
which are generally based on hours worked, amounted to

$1,300,000 in 1991, and $1,500,000 in 1990 and 1989.

The costs of unfunded retirement plans are
charged to expense when accrued. The company’s liability
for such plans, which is included in “Other Liabilities” in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets, was $31,500,000 at
December 29, 1991, and $28,100,000 at December 30,
1990.

I. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN

PENSIONS

The company and its subsidiaries provide health
care and life insurance benefits to certain retired
employees. These employees become eligible for benefits
after meeting minimum age and service requirements.

In 1991 the company adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions.” Under SFAS No. 106, the
cost of providing retiree health care and life insurance
benefits is actuarially determined and accrued over the
service period of an employee. Prior to 1991 retiree health
care and life insurance benefits were expensed as claims
and premiums were paid.
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As permitted by SFAS No. 106, the company
elected to recognize in 1991 the accumulated benefit
obligation related to prior service costs. This obligation of
$78,208,000, after income taxes of $30,311,000, is shown
on the Consolidated Statements of Income as the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. In
addition, the effect of adopting SFAS No. 106 was to
increase current year operating expense by $7,130,000.

The following table sets forth the amounts
included in “Other Liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 29, 1991 (in thousands):

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:

REATOER 00 L s o o ts e oris, TS AL $ 45,815

Fully eligible active plan participants . ...... 10,878

Other active plan participants. . ............ 32,712
Total accumulated postretirement benefit

oBlLigBtoR: & - tini v amielind Adiivs-virs Sbarpv $ 89,405

In addition to the cumulative effect of adopting
SFAS No. 106, postretirement benefit cost for the year
ended December 29, 1991, included the following

components (in thousands):
1991

Service cost for benefits
earned during the period.................. $ 2,948

Interest cost on accumulated postretirement
henehilobligation .. .ao.is « s b b S s

$ 9,352

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
was determined using a discount rate of 8 percent and a
health care cost trend rate of approximately 14 percent for
pre-age-65 benefits, decreasing to 6.5 percent in the year
2022 and thereafter; and rates of approximately 11 to 13
percent for post-age-65 benefits, decreasing to 6.5 percent
in the year 2022 and thereafter.

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost ... ....

The company’s policy is to fund the above
mentioned benefits as claims and premiums are paid.

The effect on the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation at January 1, 1991, of a 1 percent
increase each year in the heath care cost trend rate used,
would result in increases of approximately $14,000,000 in
the obligation and $2,000,000 in the aggregate service and
interest components of the 1991 expense.

In 1990 and 1989 the cost of providing health care
and life insurance benefits for retirees was not separable
from the cost of providing these benefits for active
employees. The total cost recognized for both active and
retired employees for health care and life insurance

benefits was approximately $26,500,000 in 1990, and
$22.400,000 in 1989. Retiree participation in these plans
as a percentage of total participation approximated 9
percent in 1990 and 1989 for the life insurance plan, and 16
percent in 1990 and 15 percent in 1989 for the medical plan.

J. LEAsSg COMMITMENTS

Total rental expense under operating leases
included in operating costs and expenses was
approximately $20,000,000 for 1991, $16,800,000 for
1990, and $15,900,000 for 1989. The company’s
commitments under operating lease agreements are
primarily for real estate. As of December 29, 1991,
minimum future rentals under non-cancelable leases
(exclusive of minimum sublease rentals totaling

$7,000,000) were as follows (in thousands):

158 st s, SR G et e A L T AR $14.,954
e v DR S BB S S TR e L S A 13,909
FO04:, Balter vt slewiiit-bas saslin i ol o 10,274
FOOEINE LN riliepond] Sn, EongEr, b il e 8,197
TOOGN s a2 o oL e el e DT 5,512
ThEteaiter - s oo 50 P o s d beite eibis s la shebe 8,404

$61,250

K. AcCQUuUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

During 1991 the company expended approx-
imately $21,000,000, including related expenses, for
investments in new businesses. These included an
additional investment in the International Herald Tribune,
which increased the company’s ownership to 50 percent, a
cable franchise in the United Kingdom, and a company that
publishes eleven weekly newspapers in suburban

Washington, D.C.

The International Herald Tribune and the
newspaper publishing company purchases are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting, and amortization
of the excess of the cost over the company’s share of the fair
value of the assets acquired is included in equity in
earnings of affiliates. The cable purchase included costs of
obtaining the franchise and are being amortized over the
franchise life.

During 1990 the company invested approximately
$31,000,000, including related expenses, in new
businesses. These included the remaining 50 percent
interest in a cable system in Fargo, North Dakota, cable
systems in Oklahoma and the United Kingdom, and several
preparation courses for the CPA licensing examination.
These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase
method and, accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the
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companies acquired have been recorded at their estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the cost
over the fair value of net assets acquired was $5,000,000,
which is being amortized over 40 years.

L. CONTINGENCIES

The company is a party to various civil lawsuits,
including libel actions, arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the company
carries adequate liability insurance against such libel
actions, and the company is not presently a party to any
other material litigation.

M. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The company operates principally in four areas of
the communications industry: newspaper publishing,
television broadcasting, magazine publishing and cable
television.

Newspaper operations involve the publication of
newspapers in Washington, D.C., and Everett, Washington,
and newsprint warehousing and recycling facilities.

Broadcast operations are conducted primarily
through four VHF television stations. All stations are
network-affiliated, with revenues derived primarily from
sales of advertising time.

Magazine operations consist of the publication of a

weekly news magazine, Newsweek, which has one domestic

Newspaper
(in thousands)

Publishing Broadcasting Publishing

and three international editions. Revenues from both
newspaper and magazine publishing operations are derived
from advertising and, to a lesser extent, from circulation.

Cable television operations consist of over 50
cable systems offering basic cable and pay television
services to more than 451,000 subscribers in 15
midwestern, western and southern states and over 8,000
subscribers in the United Kingdom. The principal source
of revenues is monthly subscription fees charged for
services.

Other Businesses include the operations of a
database publishing company, an experimental wireless
telephone system, and educational centers engaged in
preparing students for admissions tests and licensing
examinations (including the preparation and publishing of
training materials).

Income from operations is the excess of operating
revenues over operating expenses including corporate
expenses, which are allocated to operations of the
segments. In computing income from operations by
segment, the effects of equity in earnings of affiliates,
interest income, interest expense, other income and
expense items and income taxes are not included.

Identifiable assets by segment are those assets
used in the company’s operations in each business segment.
Investments in affiliates are discussed in Note D.
Corporate assets are principally cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities.

Magazine Cable Other
Television  Businesses Consolidated

1991
Operating revenues. . . . .......... $642,694 $163,471 $326,475 $159,503 $88,118 $1,380,261
Income from operations. . ......... $ 89,488 $ 49,074 $ 9,085 $ 35,011 $10,208 $ 192,866
Equity in earnings of affiliates . . ... (1,856)
Interest €Xpense ............c.u (17,759)
Other iHcomme, NBE.% .5 o .o Jhaddh 16,970
Income before income taxes . ...... $ 190,221
Identifiable assets. . ............. $307,897 $144,232 $131,510 $386,527 $ 52,779  $1,022,945
Investments in affiliates .......... 181,764
COTPOrate a8Bel8 | . ot i s s by 282,952

oIl aBRets . i Ur covh st s e ie siss $1,487,661
Depreciation and amortization of

property, plant and equipment. ...  $ 18,119 $ 7,174 $ 6,548 $ 24,651 $ 2203 § 58,695
Amortization of goodwill and other

Tiii e e e e i $ 533 $ 664 $ 11,553 $ 29522 § 3272
Capital expenditures............. $ 19,215 $ 3,158 § 2,762 $ 25,363 $ 5159 $ 55,657
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Newspaper Magazine Cable Other

(in thousands) Publishing Broadcasting Publishing  Television  Businesses Consolidated
1990
Operating revenues. . ............ $690,997 $179,385 $340,177 $145,473 $82,608 $1,438,640
Income from operations. .. ........ $143,758 $ 68,923 $ 26,865 $ 29,157 $ 13,065 $ 281,768
Equity in earnings of affiliates . . . .. 6,235
Interest expense ................ (16,653)
Other income, net . 05 e o 2l 20,076
Income before income taxes . ... ... $ 291,426
Identihiable gsseta ooy $309,769 $162,393 $125,520 $395,286 $51,717  $1,044,685
Investments in affiliates .......... 168,512
Cothorale dsrels . oot iivane:is 283,312

TotallasBete. bs et nth 3 $1,496,509
Depreciation and amortization of

property, plant and equipment. . . . $ 16,890 $0. 311 $ 4,639 $ 22,809 $ 1,860 $ 53,509
Amortization of goodwill and other

intangibles ta. i ot diinaeh . $ 1533 $ 664 $ 11,289 $ 249 $ 14,982
Capital expenditures............. $ 38,189 $ 6,991 $ 2,651 $ 28,660 $1.705 % 7819
1989
Operating revenues . .. ........... $726,713 $182,545 $334,352 $129,319 $ 71,165 $1,444,094
Income from operations. . ......... $176,625 $ 72,128 $ 28,161 $ 26,084 $10,693 $ 313,691
Equity in earnings of affiliates . . . .. 10,042
Interestexpense ................ (17,027)
Other income,net ............... 27,287
Income before income taxes . ...... $ 333,993
Identifiable assets............... $290,812 $179,170 $111,602 $376,770 $ 49,461  $1,007,815
Investments in affiliates .......... 167,060
COYPOTALE ASBRIS. s vy ks wnnies siat-a 357,336

Total assets = ol Dinuliinth $1,532,211
Depreciation and amortization of

property, plant and equipment. . . . $ 14,942 $ 7,543 $ 4,89 $ 19,849 $ 1,526 $ 48,756
Amortization of goodwill and other

intAnpibles o n o s $ 533 $ 664 $ 10,131 $ 2367 $ 13,695
Capital expenditures. ............ $ 42,085 $ 8,260 $ 3,479 $ 24,987 20901 .9 8712
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N. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY OPERATING REsuULTS (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly results of operations for the years ended
December 29, 1991, and December 30, 1990, are as
follows. Quarterly results for the first three quarters of
1991 have been restated to reflect the adoption in the
fourth quarter of SFAS No. 106 (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

1991

O perating PevORUBE L i b, 5 Ti om0 5 bt bivaPal s wisieiisec
INComePOR BRCIREINE +u i a5 bl s b b ss fes sieis sinsasls lele s
Net income as originally reported. .. ..........ccovvvennn.

Effect of adopting change in
accounting for postretirement
benefits otherthan PEngIONS. .\ v v« covvvsionsnssesoasnos

Income before cumulative
effect on prior years of a change
in accounting for postretirement
benefits otherthan DEnSIONs. vt s v s v s is oo wsvnss

Cumulative effect on prior
years of a change in
accounting for postretirement
benefits other than DENSIONS.. ... . o« on o WE HEE o oot osaae

Net (aes) Arepmmenl s elal el oLy G i it At e binss 510 5 ek
Earnings per share:
Net income as originally reported . . ...................

Effect of adopting change in
accounting for postretirement
benetits other than PERSIONS o . .. .. v sias vt bin v s v ae e

Income before cumulative
effect on prior years of a change
in accounting for postretirement
benefits other than pensions .......................

Cumulative effect on prior years
of a change in accounting for
postretirement benefits other
thanpensioRil. Lo Ui DR e ke e e s

b PO T T s e R TR (P SRR S

Average number of shares
BRI o o i e TP ol et s B

1990

BITTere L 7 RO M S SR SR Bl O
Income fremroperations .. & o v ki wldm ois o i e b U e s
INGEIBOOTIE . [0 00 0 000 i viareie s asion s it 46 s 00 b
Earings Persliane oo i Sl s sk biats e S e s
Average number of shares outstanding ...................

THE WASHINGTON PosT COMPANY

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter |
$317,132 $356,617 $339,959 $366,553
19,916 57,151 48,668 67,131
13,604 35,071 26,121 46,969
(1,060) (1,044) (940) o
12,544 34,027 25,181 46,969
(47,897) 2 e e
(35,353) 34,027 25,181 46,969
$1.15 $2.95 $2.20 $3.96
(.09) (.09) (.08) i
1.06 2.86 2:12 3.96
_(4.04) St S B
$(2.98) $2.86 $2.12 $3.96
11,878 11,879 11,877 11,869
$340,966 $379,551 $348,724 $369,399
58,586 91,461 62,632 69,089
39,020 55,947 37,022 42,087
$3.16 $4.60 $3.14 $3.55
12,344 12,147 11,960 11,871
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TEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED HisTOoRIcAL FINANCIAL DATA

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the summary of significant accounting policies and additional information
relative to the years 1989-1991.

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 1991 1990 1989
REsSULTS oF OPERATIONS
O ralig TENBHEERIy . o ns oo Lo o rimes el sy S T $1,380,261 $1,438,640 $1,444.,094
Ineomne BRTODEERIIOREIS S S b st 2l e s s s e e e $ 192,866 $ 281,768 $ 313,691
Income before cumulative effect of change in
SECONRLIIA BERGIDIE S0 P S 5o aliinie s e Sanhons s S s $ 118,721 $ 174,576 $ 197,893

Cumulative effect in 1991 of change in
method of accounting for postretirement

benetits other than PENSIONE. scn . -« o« <hfsis dinro s ioia i i oniv ss s (47,897) — —
T s e e e O e e U b E e $ 70,824 $ 174,576 $ 197,893

PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Earnings per share
Income before cumulative effect of change in
BECOOBIP DEIMBIBIE. 5.1 5o als s s pitis 60 sie 0k $10.00 $14.45 $15.50
Cumulative effect in 1991 of change in
method of accounting for postretirement

bénchitsiother than PenBIONS ... -« /- s v mi cisbivisnis onibs (4.04) — —

R e e S e S G S TR $ 5.96 $14.45 $15.50
T L e e S S R L S N R G O $ 4.20 $ 4.00 $ 1.84
Bidreiildersieniiiby .. ot o dBNISAEE s e $78.12 $76.31 $75.40
AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING ............. 11,876 12,081 12,768

FINANCIAL PosiITION

By O A e S e T S B e S R $ 472,219 $ 471,669 $ 553,188
T T B e e e e e b e e i 183,959 175,807 283,118
Property, plant and equipment = . . 0o in o o bin i b cira s e 390,313 394,979 370,597
TS T e R S S T . S R R i e 1,487,661 1,496,509 1,532,211
Bonptepmdehbleon 0 ol oL e e s e ra 51,915 126,988 152,061
Bhaoldess Bauily oo o s e i e D i e i e 4 924,285 905,112 941,522
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1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 1982
$1,367,613 $1,315,422 $1.215,064 $1,078,650 $984,303 $877,714 $800,824
$ 233,290 $ 257,073 $ 228,986 $ 204,186 $166,295 $132,415 $ 98,106
$ 269,117 $ 186,743 $ 100,173 $ 114,261 $ 85,886 $ 68,394 $ 52,413
$ 269,117 $ 186,743 $ 100,173 $ 114,261 $ 85,886 $ 68,394 $ 52,413

$20.91 $14.52 $ 7.80 $ 8.66 $ 6.11 $ 4.82 $ 3.70

$20.91 $14.52 $ 7.80 $ 8.66 $ 6.11 $ 4.82 $ 3.70

$ 1.56 $ 1.28 12 $ .9 $ .80 $ .66 $ .56

$67.50 $47.80 $34.04 $27.26 $27.17 $22.50 $18.32

12,873 12,861 12,842 13,194 14,050 14,195 14,153
$ 493,736 $ 226,523 $ 219422 $ 359,174 $218,559 $190,616 $170,658

235,698 (50,290) (22,647) 150,397 56,850 31,104 13,933

352,113 371,080 343,702 219,310 191,072 181,333 181,982
1,422,267 1,194,196 1,145,227 885,079 645,800 570,676 501,223

154,751 155,791 336,140 222,392 6,250 8,500 10,750

868,240 614,009 436,590 349,548 380,127 318,890 258,843
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THE WASHINGTON PosT ComMPANY IN BRIEF

NeEwsPAPER DivViIsSION

The Washington Post—a morning daily and
Sunday newspaper published in Washington, D.C. For the
12 months ended September 30, 1991, The Post’s audited
average circulation was 814,530 daily and 1,154,138
Sunday. The Post maintains 17 foreign, 7 national and 11
metropolitan news bureaus. It is printed at sites in
Northwest and Southeast Washington and nearby
Springfield, Virginia.

The Washington Post National Weekly Edition
—a tabloid publication of selected Post articles on politics
and government, edited for a national audience, with a
circulation of approximately 90,000.

The Herald—a morning daily and Sunday
newspaper published in Everett, Washington, 30 miles
north of Seattle. The Herald’s unaudited average
circulation for the 12-month period ended September 30,
1991, was 51,887 daily and 63,204 Sunday.

The Washington Post Writers Group—a
syndicator of 33 features to newspapers throughout the
country.

Robinson Terminal Warehouse Corpora-
tion—a newsprint handling and storage facility with
operations in Alexandria and Springfield, Virginia.

Capitol Fiber, Inc.—a handler and seller to
recycling industries of old newspaper and other waste
paper collected in the Washington-Baltimore area.

PosT-NEWSWEEK STATIONS

Post-Newsweek Stations—the owner and
operator of four network-affiliated VHF television stations
and the PNS Washington News Bureau.

WDIV-4—an NBC affiliate in Detroit, Michigan,
the Oth largest broadcasting market in the United States,
with 1,719,100 television households.

WPLG-10—an ABC affiliate in Miami, Florida,
the 15th largest broadcasting market in the United States,
with 1,286,300 television households.

WFSB-3—a CBS affiliate in Hartford,
Connecticut, the 24th largest broadcasting market in the
United States, with 925,600 television households.

WJXT-4—a CBS affiliate in Jacksonville, Florida,

the 54th largest broadcasting market in the United States,
with 471,500 television households.
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PosT-NEWSWEEK CABLE

Post-Newsweek Cable—Headquartered in
Phoenix, Arizona, Post-Newsweek Cable systems currently
serve over 451,000 subscribers in 15 midwestern, western
and southern states. Post-Newsweek Cable has acquired
franchises in several areas of Scotland. Principal U.S.
communities served and the number of basic subscribers
in each as of December 31, 1991, were:

Arizona Nebraska
Bishee - 0i . ens 3,044 Noblb! ;. o ieisn 10,949
ghfton o d ....... },g?g Noww Mssciioo
ORIy o - - > Rio Rancho....... 6,254
Globe: . it & . 5,120 R 1 12.709
Holbrook. ........ 1,521 e y
O 1,738 North Dakota
Safford Tl mil s 5,356 LY T R G 18,233
%?OWILOW ........ 2,833 Gkio
T » ) S e 13,324
g"l;f"’m“ L4y, Oklahoma
W Ao . PO SR 6,853
Modesto. . ....... 52,767
ATRIR Y v v en s 8,314
Santa Rosa~ ... 45,519
Union Cit 9192 APAMOTE v oon it 9,897
o (i ek X Frederick ........ 1,698
Illinois SR 1,735
Highland Park. ... 17,183 Idahel’. .. ... e 2,259
Indiana xanggm ......... é,;;g
SRR S ;
Coroarmeit s 13- B R ity . . 11,622
lowa L IR . 2,955
Sioux Uty oo . 20,543 T -
Kansas Dyersburg . ....... 8,259
Abileneis i v 2,683 Tisai
Belaitii e e 1,708 SRR 4,665
Clay Center....... 1,993
Bt 93 BOnham. s s o 2,810
S > Childrasa .. ...0 v 1,819
Misstssippi Lampasas ........ 2217
Clarksdale. . ...... 7,128 Lafkin ..« iisias 14,737
Gulfport. ... ... 20,892 Memphis .......... 942
Pissourt Odessa. oo vcines 24,446
Deackbiald ... .. goie . TWRRERES...... e
3 Sherman ........ 19,407
Jopline. o 13,523 Wellinet 1.003
Kirksville . ....... 5,423 E R R
Trenton . ...+ 2,750 POTRL. 451,179
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NEWSWEEK

Newsweek—a weekly news magazine published in
New York City, with a 1992 rate base of 3.1 million and a
12-month average circulation for 1991 of 3.3 million.
Newsweek maintains 10 U.S. and 16 foreign news bureaus
and has 9 domestic advertising sales offices. The magazine
is printed at 5 U.S. sites. In May 1991 Newsweek began
printing in Saratoga, New York.

Newsweek International—a weekly English-
language news magazine published in New York City and
circulated throughout the world. For 1992 Newsweek
International’s combined circulation for its three editions is
730,000: Atlantic, 335,000; Pacific, 330,000 (including
110,000 for The Bulletin with Newsweek, Australia’s
largest news magazine); and Latin America, 65,000.
Newsweek International maintains 11 sales offices, one in
the U.S. and 10 overseas. The magazine is printed in
Zurich, Hong Kong, Sydney and Hollywood, Florida.

Newsweek Japan (Newsweek Nihon Ban)—a
Japanese-language newsweekly with a circulation of
160,000. It is produced with TBS-Britannica, which
translates and publishes the magazine.

Newsweek Korea (Newsweek Hankuk Pan)—a
Korean-language newsweekly with a circulation rate base of
70,000. It is produced with Joong-ang Ilbo of Korea, a
division of the Samsung Group, which translates and

publishes the magazine. Newsweek Hankuk Pan is the first-

international Korean-language newsweekly.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Stanley H. Kaplan Educational Center—
Headquartered in New York City, Kaplan offers courses at
151 permanent centers throughout the United States and in
Canada and Puerto Rico, and at another 600 satellite
classrooms on a seasonal basis. The company has prepared
nearly 2 million students for over 30 standardized high
school, college and graduate school admissions tests, as
well as professional licensing examinations. Kaplan also
offers an intensive English program, a speed-reading
course and continuing professional education courses for
CPA’s. In 1991 enrollment exceeded 140,000 students.

Legi-Slate, Inc.—Headquartered in Washington,
D.C., Legi-Slate® is the original and leading online service
covering congressional legislation and voting records,
federal regulatory activity and other government-related
matters.

AFFILIATES

International Herald Tribune (50 percent
ownership)—a daily newspaper published in Paris, France.

In 1991 the International Herald Tribune had an average
daily paid circulation of more than 196,000 in 164
countries, served from printing sites in Paris, Zurich,
London, Marseilles, The Hague, Singapore, Hong Kong,
Tokyo, Rome, Frankfurt and New York.

Los Angeles Times-Washington Post News
Service, Inc. (50 percent of common stock)—a supplier of
spot news and features to more than 600 newspapers,
broadcast stations and magazines in 34 countries.

Bowater Mersey Paper Company Limited (49
percent of common stock)—a newsprint manufacturer in
Liverpool, Nova Scotia.

Bear Island Paper Company (one-third limited
partnership interest)—a newsprint manufacturer in
Doswell, Virginia.

Bear Island Timberlands Company (one-third
limited partnership interest)—an owner/manager of
timberland.

The Gaithersburg Gazette, Inc. (30 percent of
common stock)—publisher of 11 weekly newspapers in
Montgomery, Frederick and Carroll Counties, Maryland.

Cowles Media Company (28 percent of common
stock)—owner of the Minneapolis Star and Tribune and
other smaller properties.

1991 OPERATING REVENUES ($ in millions)

POST-NEWSWEEK
STATIONS 163 (12%)

NEWSPAPER DIVISION 643 (47%)

NEWSWEEK
326 (24%)

POST-NEWSWEEK

OTHER BUSINESSES 88 (6%) CABLE 160 (11%)

1991 OPERATING INcoME ($ in millions)

POST-NEWSWEEK
STATIONS 49 (25%)

NEWSPAPER DIVISION 90 (47%)

NEWSWEEK 9 (5% )

POST-NEWSWEEK

CABLE 35 (18%)
OTHER BUSINESSES 10 (5%)
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

BoARD OF DIRECTORS OTHER COMPANY OFFICERS

Katharine Graham (3) Diana M. Daniels

Chairman of the Board Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Donald E. Graham (3) Ross F. Hamachek

President Vice President-Planning and Development
Chief Executive Officer Lacnade B Jones

Publisher, The Washington Post W

Alan G.‘ Spgon (3) ) Beverly R. Keil

Executive Vice P resident Vice President-Human Resources

Chief Operating Officer

Guyon Knight
Vice President-Corporate Communications

John B. Morse, Jr.
Vice President-Finance

G. William Ryan
Vice President

Richard M. Smith
Vice President

Howard E. Wall
Vice President

Benjamin C. Bradlee
Vice President at Large, The Washington Post

James E. Burke (3)
Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Johnson & Johnson

Martin Cohen (3)

Vice President

George J. Gillespie 111 (3)

Attorney, Member of Cravath, Swaine & Moore

Ralph E. Gomory (1)
President, Alfred P. Sloan Foundation

Nicholas deB. Katzenbach (2)
Attorney

Donald R. Keough (1)

President and Chief Operating Officer

The Coca-Cola Company

Anthony J. F. O'Reilly (2)

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
H.J. Heinz Company

Barbara Scott Preiskel (1)

Attorney

William J. Ruane (1,3)

Chairman of the Board, Ruane, Cunniff & Co., Inc.

Richard D. Simmons
President, International Herald Tribune

George W. Wilson (2)
President, Concord (N.H.) Monitor

Committees of the Board of Directors:
(1) Audit Committee
(2) Compensation Committee

(3) Finance Committee
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STOCK TRADING

The Washington Post Company Class B common stock
is traded on the New York Stock Exchange with the
symbol WPO.

STOCK TRANSFER AGENTS AND
REGISTRAR

First Chicago Trust Company of New York
Post Office Box 3981

Church Street Station

New York, New York 10008-3981

The Riggs National Bank of Washington, D.C.
Corporate Trust Division

Post Office Box 96206

Washington, D.C. 20090-6206

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Communications concerning transfer requirements, lost cer-
tificates, dividends and changes of address should be direct-
ed to either transfer agent. Inquiries may be made to First
Chicago Trust Company of New York Shareholder Relations
Group hy telephone (212) 791-6422 or fax (212) 385-9796. Those
who are hearing-impaired may call the Telecommunications
Device for the Deaf (TDD) at (212) 571-0022.

FORM 10-K

The company’s Form 10-K annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission will be provided to shareholders upon
written request to: Treasurer, The Washington Post Company,
1150 15th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20071.

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on Thursday,
May 14, 1992, at 9:00 a.m., at The Washington Post Company,
9th floor, 1150 15th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND
DIVIDENDS

The Class A common stock of the company is not traded pub-
licly. The Class B common stock of the company is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. High and low sales prices
during the last two years were:

1991 1990
Quarter High Low High Low
January-March $251 $193 $296 $254
April-June 229 210 266 233
July-September 236 209 265 209
October-December 212 169 218 167

During 1991 the company repurchased 42,900 outstanding
shares of Class B common stock in unsolicited transactions
at prices no higher than the last sale price on the New York
Stock Exchange. All 42,900 shares were included in trading
volume reported on 1991's consolidated tape and accounted
for less than 1 percent of such volume.

Both classes of common stock participate equally as to divi-
dends. Quarterly dividends were paid at the rate of $1.05 per
share in 1991, and $1.00 per share in 1990. At February 19,
1992, there were 23 Class A and 1,769 Class B shareholders of
record.
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